Democratic Service
Complete Agenda ot G

CAERNARFON
Gwynedd
CYNGOR LL55 1SH

GWYNEDD

Meeting

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date and Time

1.00 pm, MONDAY, 11TH SEPTEMBER, 2023

*NOTE*
This meeting will be webcast

https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/en GB/portal/home

Location

Hybrid - Siambr Dafydd Orwig, Council Offices, Caernarfon LL55 1SH
and Virtually via Zoom

Contact Point

Lowri Haf Evans
01286 679 878

lowrihafevans@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

(DISTRIBUTED 01/09/23)

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru



http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/en_GB/portal/home

PLANNING COMMITTEE

MEMBERSHIP (15)

Plaid Cymru (9)

Councillors
Elwyn Edwards Delyth Lloyd Griffiths
Elin Hywel Gareth Tudor Jones
Huw Wyn Jones Olaf Cai Larsen
Edgar Wyn Owen Gareth A Roberts

Huw Rowlands

Independent (5)

Councillors
Louise Hughes Elwyn Jones
Anne Lloyd-Jones John Pughe Roberts
Gruffydd Williams
Lib/Lab (1)

Councillor Gareth Coj Parry



PROCEDURE FOR SPEAKING ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS IN
THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Council has decided that third parties have the right to speak on planning applications at
the Planning Committee. This leaflet outlines the normal operational arrangements for
speaking at the committee.

1. | Report of the Planning Service on the planning application
including a recommendation.

2. | If an application has been received from a 3" party to speak the
Chairman will invite the speaker to come forwards.

3. | Objector or a representative of the objectors to address the | 3 minutes
committee.

4. | Applicant or a representative of the applicant(s) to address the | 3 minutes
committee.

5. | Local Member(s) to address the committee 10 minutes

6. | Committee Chairman to ask for a proposer and seconder for the
planning application.

7. | The committee to discuss the planning application




AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES
To accept any apologies for absence.

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL
MATTERS

To receive any declaration of personal interest and to note protocol matters.
3. URGENT ITEMS

To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman
for consideration.

4. MINUTES 6-17

The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting of this
committee, held on, 17" July 2023 be signed as a true record.

5. APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER UNDER THE ROAD TRAFFIC 18-26
ACT 1984

Community: Llanberis and Nant Peris
Ward: Llanberis

Proposal: Gwynedd Council Order (various County roads, Arfon Area)
(30mph speed restriction) 2023

6. PLANNING APPLICATIONS

To submit the report of the Head of Environment Department.

5.1 APPLICATION NO C21/1220/42/LL MORLAIS LON PENRALLT, 27-55
NEFYN, PWLLHELI, GWYNEDD, LL53 6EP

Cliff stabilisation works, demolition and reconstruction of a single house
LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Gruffydd Williams

Link to relevant background documents

5.2 APPLICATION NO C23/0432/11/LL  HELIPAD, YSBYTY 56-65
GWYNEDD, PENRHOSGARNEDD, BANGOR, LL57 2PW

Removal of the existing helicopter landing pad and construction of two new
landing pads to support the existing Hospital. Works will involve re grading


Link%20to%20relevant%20background%20documents

5.3

5.4

the soft landscape to accommodate a new access road, landing pads
inclusive of all surface water drainage, illuminated landing markings and
barriers, new secure fencing and enclosures to support the aircraft.

LOCAL MEMBERS: Councillor Menna Baines and Councillor Gareth
Roberts

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C22/1169/15/LL LLANBERIS LIBRARY,
FFORDD CAPEL COCH, LLANBERIS, CAERNARFON,
GWYNEDD, LL55 4SH

Demolish the old library and build three new intermediate affordable houses.
LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Kim Jones

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C23/0293/42/LL AROSFA, EDERN, PWLLHELL,
GWYNEDD, LL53 8YU

Full application for the demolition of existing structures and construction of a
new dwelling and associated works

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Gareth Morris Jones

Link to relevant background documents

66 - 83

84 -104


https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=34198&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=33713&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=34102&language=en

Agenda Item 4.

PLANNING COMMITTEE 17 July 2023

Present:

Councillors: Elwyn Edwards, Elin Hywel, Elwyn Jones, Gareth T Jones, Anne Lloyd Jones, Cai
Larsen, Edgar Owen, Gareth Coj Parry, Gareth Roberts, John Pughe Roberts, Huw Rowlands and
Gruffydd Williams

Officers: Gareth Jones (Assistant Head of Planning and the Environment), Keira Sweenie
(Planning Manager), Miriam Roberts (Legal Services), Glyn Llywelyn Gruffydd (Senior
Development Control Officer), Rhys Cadwaladr (Senior Planning Officer — Minerals and Waste)
and Lowri Haf Evans (Democracy Services Officer).

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillors Louise Hughes, Delyth Lloyd Griffiths and Huw
Wyn Jones

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL MATTERS
a) The following member declared that he had an interest in relation to the item noted:

Councillor Huw Rowlands (a member of this Planning Committee), in item 5.6
(C22/0909/22/LL) on the agenda because of a family connection

The Member believed it was a prejudicial interest, and he withdrew from the meeting
during the discussion on the application.

b) The following members declared that they were local members in relation to the items
noted:

e  Councillor Gruffydd Williams (a member of this Planning Committee) in relation
to item 5.2 (C21/1220/42/LL) on the agenda

e  Councillor Kim Jones (not a member of this Planning Committee), in item 5.3
(C22/1169/15/LL) on the agenda

e Councillor Meryl Roberts (not a member of this Planning Committee), in item 5.7
(C23/0201/08/LL) on the agenda

3. URGENT ITEMS
None to note
4. MINUTES

The Chair accepted the minutes of the previous meeting of this committee, held on 19 June
2023, as a true record.

Page 6



51

5.2

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee considered the following applications for development. Details of the
applications were expanded upon, and questions were answered in relation to the plans
and policy aspects.

RESOLVED

APPLICATION NUMBER C23/0234/08/LL Plot 2 Griffin Industrial Estate,
Penrhyndeudraeth

Erection of Distribution Depot building and Administration and maintenance building,
create vehicle and lorry parking areas, vehicle washing area, installation of security
fencing, landscaping and associated works.

APPLICATION WITHDRAWN

APPLICATION NUMBER C21/1220/42/LL Morlais L6n Penrallt, Nefyn, Pwllheli

Demolition of existing dwelling and construct a new dwelling in its place, and work to
stabilise the cliffs

a) The Senior Development Control Officer highlighted that this was a full application for
the demolition of an existing dwelling and construction of a replacement dwelling,
together with work to stabilise coastal cliffs. Externally, the new house would include a
pitched roof finished in dark zinc and the finishes of the exterior walls would be a
combination of timber boards on the upper floor and natural stone on the lower floors.
He noted that the site and existing building were located at the foot of the cliffs of Nefyn
Beach, and the cliffs were designated as the Clogwyni Pen Llyn Special Area of
Conservation (SAC) and was also the Porthdinllaen to Porth Pistyll Site of Special
Scientific Interest (SSSI). He added that the site was outside the current development
boundary of Nefyn with access gained to the site along the beach as well as a public
footpath that led down from the top of the cliff past the site and onwards to the beach
below.

He explained that the existing site contained a house that dated back to the late
1960s/early 1970s and of a style that included flat roofs. Its appearance conveyed
those of that era. The site and the wider area were within the LIyn and Enlli Landscape
of Outstanding Historic Interest designation, and outside a nearby flood zone (which
only applied to the beach). He noted that elements of the proposal had been amended
since the original submission because of comments received, which included the
external finishes of the dwelling following a comment by the AONB Unit (although the
site was not within the AONB, these were considered as general comments).

He added that originally, a part of the proposal involved diverting the existing public
footpath that ran past the site and repositioning it to be further from the building.
Following discussions and after receiving comments on the proposal from the Council's
Rights of Way Unit, Nefyn Town Council and members of the public, it was decided
that the proposal was too contentious and therefore the path would stay as it was.

The application was submitted to the Planning Committee by the Local Member for

reasons of it being an over-development of the site, that it would destabilise the cliffs
and have an adverse impact on the area.

Page 7


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=332652
https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=332652
https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=44980

In the context of relevant policies, reference was made to the requirements of policy
PS 5 which stated that priority should be given to the effective use of land and
infrastructure, prioritising the re-use of previously used land and buildings, wherever
possible. In this case, a dwelling already existed, and the site was already developed,
therefore the proposal satisfied the general requirements of policy PS 5 of the Anglesey
and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP). It was added that Policy TAI 13
of the LDP related specifically to replacement dwellings and set a series of criteria that
must be conformed to (where appropriate) in order to approve such schemes.

The officer added that the application had obviously involved some considerable
scrutiny due to several specialist considerations that would not normally be found to
the same degree at least, with most Planning applications to demolish and re-build
residential housing. It was reported that qualified companies and/or individuals had
assessed the information to hand and had stated their opinion, and that the findings
and recommendations of the specialist reports would be included as formal conditions
so that the development would have to be carried out in strict conformity to the
recommended measures. By ensuring this, the development would be carried out in
full compliance with the general consent agreed. Should the situation change in terms
of amending the proposal in response to a situation that arises, then we would have to
respond at that time to any new situation.

In response to some of the objections that had been received expressing concern that
granting permission would set a dangerous precedent, it was noted that there was a
lawful right to have a dwelling on the site, and that the applicant would be entitled to
adapt it without planning permission. It was noted that the size and bulk of the house
matched the existing dwelling, but a pitched roof was proposed instead of a flat roof.

For the purpose of the application, it was noted that the specialist information had been
assessed and found to be acceptable. The proposal was considered acceptable and in
compliance with the requirements of the relevant policies.

b) Taking advantage of the right to speak, the applicant made the following observations:

¢ There had been significant damage recently to the cliffs

e Carrying out the adaptations would secure the cliff behind Morlais — which
would subsequently ensure the safety of the family and the public

e The path in front of the house was the only path that allowed access to the
beach at high tide — the work would be a means to preserve the path

e The existing building was unpopular — the pre-fab material would be replaced
with more sympathetic materials

e The size would be similar to the existing house but with less glass, and would
use local stone and have a pitched roof which would have a more pleasing
appearance

o If the application was not approved, permission would be required to secure
the cliffs and retain the house as it was

¢  The main driver behind the development was safety
Most of the consultees supported the application

o The safety of the family, and users of the footpath and the beach needed to be
ensured

c) Taking advantage of the right to speak, the Local Member made the following
observations:

Page 8



5.3

e Alarge number had objected — how many complaints had been received?

e The original application had included moving the footpath — he was very
pleased that the route of the path would remain unchanged — need a condition
to secure the use of the path for fishermen and the public

e Aslip and a series of steps connected the site and the beach — the handrail was
unstable — there was no reference to this in the report

e The existing dwelling was an eye-sore — he welcomed the fact that it would be
demolished

e It was a matter of opinion as to whether the proposal's design was an
improvement

o He accepted that the site was not part of the AONB, but it must be taken into
account that it bordered the AONB and was located in one of the most beautiful
places

e Several applications had been refused based on design within the AONB but
had then been approved on appeal

¢ Considering the context of the objections, he suggested that the members visit
the site

ch) It was proposed and seconded to conduct a site visit

RESOLVED: To defer in order to conduct a site visit

APPLICATION NUMBER C22/1169/15/LL Llanberis Library, Ffordd Capel Coch,
Llanberis

Demolition of former library and construction of three new intermediate affordable
dwellings.

a) The Senior Development Control Officer highlighted that this was a full application for
the demolition of the former Llanberis library and the construction of three new
'intermediate’ affordable dwellings in its place (two 2-bedroom semi-detached dwellings
and one 3-bedroom detached dwelling). The library was closed in 2017 and the site,
which was within the residential area of the Llanberis Local Service Centre as defined
in the LDP, had been dormant since. The site was served by Capel Coch Road, which
also served Dolbadarn primary school. Reference was made to the footbridge over
Afon Coch river towards the rear of the site, which connected with Glanrafon Estate —
over the past few years flood alleviation work had been completed on the riverbanks
because of significant flooding in 2012.

This was a development by Cyngor Gwynedd as part of the 'Ty Gwynedd' scheme and
the houses will be offered to buy or rent for an affordable price to local people.

Attention was drawn to the number of objections to the plan because parking issues
already existed on Ffordd Capel Coch which caused ill-feeling amongst residents, and
there was concern that the construction of three dwellings at this location would
exacerbate the situation. In addition, there was concern regarding the hazard to street
users, including children who attended the nearby school, due to the increase in traffic.

Despite the concerns, the Transportation Unit had no objection to the proposal in

principle although they had noted that they would not support the creation of on-street
parking spaces. The officer stated that there was a private parking space for each new

Page 9


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=42543
https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=42543

b)

c)

property in the plans and that space would remain for three cars to park on the road in
front of the development. It was added that until recently, the site had been a public
library that attracted traffic itself. Consequently, it was not considered that the
development itself would exacerbate the on-street parking situation compared to what
could be the case under the site's current lawful planning use. Similarly, it was not
considered that the traffic caused by three dwellings would cause a greater risk to street
users than the former library.

In the context of flooding concerns, a Flood Consequence Assessment (FCA) had been
submitted with the application in response to initial observations from Natural
Resources Wales (NRW). It was noted that the findings of the Flood Consequence
Assessment and the modelling process that was followed confirmed that the
development would comply with the requirements of the current TAN 15, specifically
the criteria set by Appendix 1 of the TAN. In addition, the FCA proposed a series of
alleviation measures to improve the resilience of the development to flooding. As a
result, the proposal was considered acceptable based on the ability to manage flood
risk to the occupiers of the proposed dwellings, and that it would not cause added risk
in other places. It was therefore considered that the application complied with the
requirements of Policies PS 5 and PS 6 and the content of the current TAN 15:
Development and Flood Risk (2004).

In the context of the specialist information submitted regarding the flood risk, it was
accepted that this development would not exacerbate the situation in terms of material
planning matters compared with what could occur under the site's present lawful
planning use. Indeed, it was considered that the proposal might offer an opportunity to
improve the site's resilience to flood risk and introduce improvements in terms of
matters such as visual amenities and biodiversity. It was noted that the proposal offered
the opportunity to create affordable housing for local people on a brownfield site within
the development boundary; it was an acceptable plan in principle, and it complied with
relevant local and national planning policies.

Taking advantage of the right to speak, the Local Member made the following
observations:
e She was supportive of an application for affordable housing because of the
housing crisis for local people, although the site in question was unsuitable
e There was a significant lack of parking in the village — there were tensions
between local residents / occupiers of second home/Airbnb sites regarding the
shortage of parking spaces
e If the houses were built, where would people park? Some occupiers were
elderly, lack of mobility — this had not been considered
e Local police officers were called out regularly to deal with matters of illegal
parking
o The scheme meant the loss of parking spaces that would lead to complete
disarray
e The road also led to a busy farm
e She accepted that there was a shortage of houses, but the location was
unsuitable
e Was it possible to consider turning the old library into a car park — this would
alleviate the problem?

It was proposed and seconded to conduct a site visit to assess the context of the site

Page 10



ch) During the ensuing discussion, the following observations were made by Members:
¢ Needed to consider the Community Council's concerns regarding parking
e It was suggested that three dwellings be erected instead of two, which would
release parking space
¢ It would be irresponsible not to respond to the village's parking problems
The proximity of the site to the river needed to be considered

RESOLVED to defer to conduct a site visit

APPLICATION NUMBER C22/0788/03/MW Ffestiniog Slate Quarry, Talywaenydd,
Blaenau Ffestiniog

Application for the working of a slate waste tip to create stockpile for processing at an
existing minerals plant.

a) The Senior Minerals and Waste Planning Officer explained that this was an application
for the working of a slate waste tip to create stockpile for processing at an existing
minerals plant. The Bryntirion tip stood within the Ffestiniog Slate Quarry which was to
the northwest of the town of Blaenau Ffestiniog; vehicular access to the quarry was
gained from the A470 Trunk Road, around 150m north of Oakley Terrace.

It was reported that the applicant operated a minerals plant that processed slate waste
from both the Ffridd and Bryntirion waste tips to produce granulated slate products.
The southern portion of the tip had already been worked as part of planning permission
C10M/0103/03/MW (subsequently prolonged under C20/0079/03/AC). Material was
moved from the tip using a tracked excavator and fed into a mobile crusher and feed
hopper prior to being transported to be dried and milled in the plant on a conveyor belt.
This powdered or granulated slate product was primarily used for building materials
such as roofing felt, artificial slate bitumen, insecticides, paint, resins, pipeline coatings,
roofing and damp-course felts, automotive body under seal, terrazzo tiles and plastics
or exported by road as secondary aggregate.

The need for the application came because of the limited reserve left in the tips that
were already permitted to be worked. There were an estimated 520,000 tonnes of
additional reserve within the application area, which would ensure that the minerals
plant had a continuous supply of feedstock for five years.

The proposal did not propose to increase HGV movements from the site, and it would
release the mineral reserve in line with the existing conditions for Ffestiniog Quarry that
restricted output to 9 loads per working day and 2 loads on Saturdays, Sundays and
Bank/Public Holidays.

Reference was made to observations received from Network Rail (NR) which objected
to the proposal because of the lack of information regarding dust control and its effects
on the tunnel air shafts. However, it was explained that the applicant had provided
thorough information on dust control and the Public Protection Unit had recommended
appropriate conditions (mitigation measures) to reduce any impact on air quality. It was
added that NR also objected based on ground stability and water run-off in relation to
the Ffestiniog tunnel and railway. NR had requested further discussions between all
parties in March, but a meeting to discuss further observations on the content of the
technical information had not materialised.

Page 11



55

b)

The Minerals Planning Authority was of the opinion that the applicant had provided
adequate information in terms of technical reports relating to the surface load bearing,
hydrology/geology and restoration proposals, and that none of the information provided
by Network Rail disproved the adequacy or reliability of these reports. The Authority
had contacted Network Rail several times regarding these matters, specifically drawing
their attention to the detailed reports received, but no additional comments were
received.

In the context of Biodiversity matters, it was noted that the Gwynedd Biodiversity Unit
and NRW had confirmed that they had no objection to the proposals provided relevant
conditions were imposed. These conditions would ensure that the proposal complied
with policy AMG 5 of the JLDP and TAN 5, namely that there was no adverse effect on
local biodiversity. It was considered that the proposed development complied with all
relevant planning policies and considerations, and it was recommended that the
planning application be approved with conditions.

Taking advantage of the right to speak, the applicant made the following observations:
e The application would facilitate an extension to the works

There would be a continuous five-year supply of material

This would safeguard six jobs for at least another five years

This was the only source of this material in the UK

This step would be significant in securing a continued provision of materials

The company saw value in the history of the quarry

It was proposed and seconded to approve the application.

RESOLVED: To approve the application subject to conditions relating to the

following:

1. Duration of working period 31/12/2040 and restoration up to 31/12/2042
to coincide with the terms of overarching planning permission.

2. Permitted operations and compliance with submitted details/plans.

3. Mark the site boundary and mineral extraction zones.

4, Working Hours.

5. Manage HGV vehicle movements from the site to 9 per day on working
days (Monday - Friday), No more than 2 on Saturdays, Sundays and
Bank/Public Holidays.

6. Dust Suppression Measures.

7. Air quality monitoring

8. Operational Noise — noise level restrictions.

9. Noise monitoring surveys.

10. Restrict the operating hours of the crusher.

11. Reasonable measures to avoid reptiles.

12. Biodiversity Enhancement Plan (to include the creation of an otter holt).

13. Restoration Management Plan (to include surveying and eradication
measures for non-native invasive species and stock-proof fencing to
stop access of livestock to restored areas).

APPLICATION NUMBER C23/0075/25/AC Meifod, Ffordd Penrhos, Penrhosgarnedd,
Bangor

Page 12



An application to amend conditions attached to planning permission C21/0042/25/LL for
the erection of a two-storey dwelling, garage, creation of new vehicular access and
associated works: Condition 2 — Variation of the approved plan to enable a change in the
position of the proposed building within the site; Condition 9 — amendment in wording to
require completion of the access shown on the submitted plan prior to the occupation of
the dwelling.

Attention was drawn to the additional observations.

a) The Planning Manager highlighted that this was an application to vary Condition 2
(planning permission C21/0042/25/LL) for full planning permission to erect a two-storey
dwelling and associated works, to allow changing the position of the approved dwelling
3m north-eastwards. He explained that the site was served by an access from Ffordd
Penrhos which was a third-class county road, and that a parking area, garage and car
port would be provided as part of the development. The rear of the site bordered with
a wooded area that was designated as the Ffordd Treborth Woodland Wildlife Site,
which separated the site from the Treborth Garden Centre.

Revised plans were received when discussing this application, showing a reduction in
the building's footprint compared to what had been approved originally. He noted that
the proposal to move the location of the dwelling resulted from the need to avoid
development within the buffer zone, which extended 4m either side of the centre of the
main sewer pipe that crossed the site.

He highlighted that the application also included a proposal to vary Condition 9 of the
previous permission to facilitate the construction work by ensuring that the final
vehicular access was in place before the dwelling was occupied rather than before
development of the site.

The application was submitted to the Committee at the Local Member’s request. A
message had been received from the local member noting that, after reading the
officer's report and in light of further discussions with the residents of the nearest
property, they had confirmed to her that they no longer objected to the application as it
stood. However, they emphasised the need to adhere to the plans submitted with the
application.

The principle of the proposal to erect a house of a similar size and design on this site
was considered to have already been accepted via planning permission
C21/0042/25/LL - the relevant policies had not changed since then, therefore that
permission had been implemented and was extant. It was considered that the principle
of building a dwelling on the site remained acceptable and in accordance with the
principle of current housing policies.

Considering the reduction in the development's footprint, especially in the extension
towards the north, together with the discussion regarding the amenity impacts, it was
not believed that moving this house to the new position would have a significantly
harmful amenity impact on the site's appearance, the local development pattern or on
private amenities.

b) It was proposed and seconded to approve the application.

RESOLVED to approve subject to relevant planning conditions:

Page 13



5.6

1. Compliance with the new submitted plans

2. The window on the eastern elevation of the ground floor to be opaque

3. The development shall be commenced within five years

4, No development to commence until a drainage plan for the site has been
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing.

5. The exact mitigation measures and the biodiversity enhancement
suggestions, as included in sections 5.2 to 5.4 of the Preliminary Ecological
Report submitted with application C21/0042/25/LL, must be followed.

6. It shall not be permitted at any time for the highway's current boundary
wall/hedge/fence or any new highway-facing boundary erected to be higher
than 1 metre above the carriageway level of the adjacent county road from
either end of the site's boundary to the highway and it is not permitted to
erect anything higher than this within 2m of the wall in question.

7. The access must be planned and constructed in full accordance with the
submitted plans.

8. Removal of permitted development rights

Notes

1 - Party Wall Act Note

2 — Draw the applicant’s attention to Welsh Water observations

3 — Sustainable Drainage Systems Note

APPLICATION NUMBER C22/0909/22/LL Fferm Taldrwst, L6n Ddwr, Llanllyfni,
Caernarfon

Demolish existing dwelling and construct a new house in its place together with a
soakaway and private treatment plant.

a) The Planning Manager highlighted that this was a full application involving a proposal

to demolish an existing dwelling that was in a dilapidated state and to construct a
replacement dwelling. The plans showed that the proposed house would keep to the
layout form of the existing property and would include a shed, living room / kitchen, hall
and office on the ground floor and three bedrooms with a bathroom on the first floor.
The proposal would involve constructing a rear extension for a kitchen and bedroom.

The property was served by a narrow private track that connected the house and a
more recent nearby farmhouse to a third-class county road nearby. It was noted that
the property was located within a Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest and a
Special Landscape Area and stood outside any village boundary and was within a rural
area.

It was highlighted that the Head of Environment considered that the application should
be submitted to the Planning Committee due to public interest in the application and
the site, and because of the close working relationship between the applicant's brother
and the Planning Department.

Attention was drawn to the relevant planning history.
In terms of the principle of the development, it was noted that the proposal involved

demolishing an existing house and erecting a new house in its place by re-using
previously developed land, and such a development could therefore be supported. It

Page 14



5.7

was reported that the proposal satisfied the basic the requirements of policies PS5,
PCYFF1 and PS17 of the LDP as well as Policy TAI 13 that related specifically to
replacement dwellings. It was added that Policy TAI 13 set a series of criteria that must
be conformed to (where appropriate) to approve such schemes. A lawful development
certificate for the proposed use of the property as a residential dwelling was granted
on 06-10-2016, therefore it could be stated that the lawful residential use of the house
remained valid.

Having considered all the relevant planning matters including the local and national
policies and guidance, as well as all the observations received, this proposal was
considered acceptable and in compliance with the requirements of the relevant policies,
and that the conditions addressed the public's concerns.

b) It was proposed and seconded to approve the application.

RESOLVED to approve with conditions

N~ WNE

In accordance with the plans

Implement the permission within five years.

Materials

Landscaping and tree preservation

Boundary / curtilage details

Archaeological investigation work

Removal of permitted rights

Complete the work in accordance with the protected species report.

APPLICATION NUMBER C23/0201/08/LL Land opposite Trem y Moelwyn,
Penrhyndeudraeth.

Construction of 41 affordable housing and associated developments

a) The Planning Manager highlighted that this was a full application to provide 41

dwellings, a new access, a new estate road and associated works on a plot of land on
a site that had been designated under T48 as a housing site in the JLDP. The site was
located on a plot of agricultural land used as livestock pasture, in the middle of the
settlement of Penrhyndeudraeth and within the development boundary. He noted that
the site measured 1.26ha and the application could be split into different elements,
which included: -

e The provision of 41 residential units to include 30 two-storey houses (20 x 2-
bedroom, four person houses; 5 x 3-bedroom, 5 person houses; 1 x 7 person, 4-
bedroom house and 4 x 5 person side-access houses); 1 x 2-bedroom, 3 person
bungalow; 8 flats (1-bedroom, 2 person); 1 x 6-bedroom, 10 person supported
living house, as well as one x 4-bedroom bungalow with wheelchair access.
The provision of parking spaces within the curtilage of each house and off-road.
The creation of a new access off Trem y Moelwyn Estate.

The creation of a new pedestrian access off the nearby A487 highway.

Soft and hard landscaping within and around the edges of the site.

Biodiversity enhancements plan.

The provision of an informal open space for children as well as an amenity space.
Installation of a surface water and foul water drainage system to serve the
development.

Page 15



o Culverting part of the watercourse that ran through the site.

It was reported that Penrhyndeudraeth would exceed its indicative level through this
development, and consequently justification would be required with this application
outlining how the proposal would address the needs of the local community by
providing an appropriate mix of housing (Policy TAI 8). It was added that the
applicant had submitted information to support the application which stated that the
Gnwp Cynefin and Clwyd-Alyn registered social landlords would be working together
to build the affordable dwellings and become the site's owners once the development
had been completed. It was also noted that the plan had been included within a
programme to receive a Social Housing Grant from the Welsh Government. Grip
Cynefin would be responsible for 19 affordable housing units and Clwyd-Alyn would
be responsible for 22 affordable housing units, with the tenure being a mix of social
and intermediate rent; part-ownership and affordable intermediate housing for sale
— this housing mix responded to the local need for affordable housing in
Penrhyndeudraeth.

In the context of educational matters, it was confirmed that there was enough
capacity in the schools in the catchment area, namely Ysgol Gynradd Cefn Coch and
Ysgol Ardudwy, to accommodate the proposed number of children that could be
expected from approving this proposal.

With regard to open spaces, it was noted that a provision of informal open spaces
would be located in the centre of the site, which would give prospective occupiers an
opportunity to use them, as well as other local residents. This provision of informal
open spaces was separate and in addition to the requirement for formal/informal play
areas for children and outdoor sports areas. Nonetheless, it was noted that there was
a shortage of both play areas with equipment for children and outdoor sports areas
in the catchment area of the application site, and a viability statement was submitted
with the application which stated that should they be required to provide open play
areas for the anticipated number of children, this would necessitate the loss of many
housing units, rendering the development non-viable. It was added that the
applicants had already held initial discussions with the Community Council about
making a financial contribution towards improving the facilities of Parc Mileniwm
located in the town centre, by signing a legal agreement to realise the contribution.

It was considered that the proposal as revised would be acceptable in principle and
that the affordable units would contribute significantly towards the affordable housing
needs of Penrhyndeudraeth. Full consideration was given to the observations
received from local residents and the statutory consultees, however, no significantly
harmful impact that contravened relevant local and national planning policies was
identified.

b) Taking advantage of the right to speak, the applicant made the following
observations:
e The Planning officers supported the application
e The application site had been allocated for housing development
e The application offered more than the 10% affordable housing provision - 41
rather than 4.1%

The scheme addressed the local need
e Drainage concerns were now being managed on the site and the arrangement
had been approved by NRW

Page 16



c)

ch)

d)

e Light pollution and neighbours' privacy had been taken into consideration
A detailed review of the site's ecology had been carried out, and a
comprehensive landscape plan had been produced in response
e They had been careful when considering the access
The aims of preserving and protecting the language were welcomed
e Discussions regarding a play area had commenced with the Town Council

Taking advantage of the right to speak, the Local Member made the following
observations:

e She was supportive of the application

e She welcomed the fact that the access was larger

o She was pleased that the water problems had been sorted out

e Local people should be given priority

It was proposed and seconded to approve the application.

In response to an observation regarding having assurance that it would be
Penrhyndeudraeth residents being housed in the units, the Assistant Head stated that
the units would be let in accordance with the Council's Allocations Policy, and the
Planning Manager added that an affordable housing condition would ensure that the
local need was addressed, but this did not mean restricting the need to a particular
area.

RESOLVED to delegate powers to the Senior Planning Manager to approve the
application subject to the applicant signing a Section 106 agreement to secure an
open spaces financial contribution and to the following conditions: -

Five years.

In accordance with the plans/details submitted with the application.

Landscaping

Secure a plan/arrangements for providing the affordable units e.g. mix,

tenure, occupancy criteria, timetable and arrangements to ensure that units

are affordable now and in perpetuity.

5. Compliance with the recommendations of the following documents: the
Preliminary Ecological Assessment; Reptile Survey and Eradication of
Invasive Species Statement.

6. Agree on details regarding Welsh names for the development before the
residential units are occupied for any purpose along with signage advertising
and promoting the development.

7. Working hours limited to 8:00-18:00 Monday to Friday; 08:00-13:00 Saturday
and not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

8. Compliance with the content of the Environmental Construction Management
Plan document submitted as part of the application.

9. Relevant conditions from the Transportation Unit regarding improvements to
the access and parking spaces.

10. Submit and agree to samples of materials and colours for the residential
dwellings.

11. Submit and agree to a biodiversity enhancements plan to include reptile re-
location.

12. Submit and agree on solar panels details.

PR

Page 17



13. Restrict the use of the proposed housing to Use Class C3 of the Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amended) (Wales) Order 1987 — residential
dwellings used as a sole residence or main residence.

14. Agree on the location and type of noise barrier adjacent to the houses of
nearby residents before work is commenced on the site.

106 condition/agreement for the relocation of reptiles.

Note — need to submit a sustainable drainage system application to be agreed
with the Council.

Note —refer the applicant to Welsh Water observations and amended advice.
Note — refer the applicant to observations and advice from Natural Resources
Wales.

The meeting commenced at 13:00 and concluded at 14:20

CHAIR

Page 18



Agenda Item 5.

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
3k 3k 3K sk sk %k %k k
Type of Application: Application for an order under the Road Traffic Management Act 1984
Community: Llanberis and Nant Peris
Ward: Llanberis

Proposal: Gwynedd Council Order (various County roads, Arfon Area) (30mph speed
restriction) 2023

Location: Arfon

Recommendation:

To approve keeping the speed restriction at 30mph on the road near Pendre Castell on the A4086 and
keeping the speed restriction at 30mph on the A4086 between Nant Peris ‘park and ride’ and Pont
Gwastadnant.

Background and description

The Restricted Roads (20mph Speed Limit) (Wales) Order 2022 was made by Welsh Ministers on 13 July
2022 following Senedd Cymru's decision.

Before 17 September 2023, local authorities need to consider which restricted roads should stay at
30mph. To this end, the Council has introduced a 30mph order for Arfon, Dwyfor and Meirionnydd areas.

The Arfon area order includes the intention of keeping the speed restriction at 30mph on 37 separate
sections of roads. Cyngor Gwynedd has received objections to two specific sections;-

Llanberis From a point approximately 42 metres south east
Class 1 Road - A4086 passing Pentre Castell of its junction with Victoria Terrace for a distance of
679 metres in a general south easterly direction.
Nant Peris From a point approximately 14 metres south east
Class 1 Road - A4086 Gwastadnant of its junction with the Nant Peris Park and Ride car
park to a point approximately 34 metres east
of Pont Gwastadnant in a south easterly direction.

Page 18



The Consultation

As part of the 20mph scheme, led by the Traffic Unit, the proposed scheme was consulted upon with
stakeholders in December 2022 as part of the pre-consultation process. During the period, observations
were received and changes were introduced to the schemes.

Further consultations on the proposed schemes were held with stakeholders and members of the public
in April 2023. This consultation was undertaken by publishing our plans on-line and promoting the
scheme by informing the stakeholders, as well as promoting the consultation on social media.

In July 2023, as part of the statutory consultation process, an e-mail was received objecting to the
Gwynedd Council Order (various County roads, Arfon Area) (30mph speed restriction) 2023 by Llanberis
Community Council for the following sections of the order.

The objections

Llanberis - Pentre Castell
(A copy of the correspondence from the objector is attached in Appendix A)

Reason for the objection The Council's Response
No reasons have been presented from Officers believe that this section of the road should
the Community Council. remain at 30mph because;

1. theroadisaclass 1road (Aroad)

2. the number of houses on the side of the
road is fewer than 20 buildings/km*.

3. the houses that do not have a private access
from the main road are only on one side of
the road.

Page 19



Nant Peris - Gwastadnant
(A copy of the correspondence from the objector is attached in Appendix A)

Reason for the objection The Council's Response
No reasons have been presented from Officers believe that this part of the road should
the Community Council. remain at 30mph because;

1. theroadisaclass1road

2. the number of houses on the side of the
road is fewer than 20 buildings/km*.

3. Impact on emergency services (Llanberis
Mountain Rescue Team do not have the right to drive

above the speed restrictions in an emergency)

* Guidance; Setting exceptions to the 20mph default speed limit for restricted roads — Welsh Government

Assessment of the proposal

The following roads are currently 30mph, therefore the following order does not propose any changes to
the road's current situation. Although officers fully understand the wishes of Llanberis Community Council
to reduce the speed restriction on these sections of the road to 20mya, these wishes do not correspond
with the guidance set out by the Welsh Government. The main reasons for keeping these roads at 30mph
is that they are Class 1 (A) roads, and the number of buildings on the side of the road do not reach the
threshold of 20 buildings/km.

Despite this, the Traffic Unit will continue to monitor traffic on this section of the road with the intention
of reviewing the decision in 6 months.

Equality Act 2010

The Council is subject to public sector duties under the Equality Act 2010 (including Welsh public sector
duties). In accordance with these legal duties when making decisions, Councils must pay due regard to the
need (1) to eliminate unlawful discrimination (2) advance equality of opportunity and (3) encourage good
relations based on the protected characteristics. And pay due regard to the social economic duty under
Section 1 of the Act. The committee is asked to pay attention to its findings when making a decision.

The assessment does not identify any specific impact resulting from the decision.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 involves improving the social, economic,
environmental, and cultural well-being of Wales. The act places a well-being duty on public bodies aimed
at delivering the seven well-being goals which is a Wales that is prosperous, resilient, healthier,

more equal with cohesive communities and vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language which is globally
responsible. The recommendation has been prepared by paying attention to the Act's requirements and
addressing the five ways of working.

Page 20



Conclusions

The Restricted Roads (20mph Speed Limit) (Wales) Order presented by the Welsh Government is
controversial. Officers, therefore, are keen to keep restrictions at 30mph in appropriate areas to reduce
the impact of the Order. In accordance with the Welsh Government's guidelines, we would like to reduce
the restriction's impact on our strategic network, especially in locations with a low housing density. As a
result, officers would like to recommend that the restrictions remain at 30mph on the following roads for
the time being but also suggest that the following roads should be reviewed within six months.

Recommendation:

To approve the introduction of the exceptions as noted.

Appendices

A - Copy of a letter of objection.
B - Map of the proposed plan.

Appendix A - Letter of Objection

Page 21



| refer to your recent correspondence relating to the proposal to reduce the maximum speed in
Wales in September 2023.

We note that Llanberis Community Council, in general, is supportive of the proposal to reduce
maximum speed to 20mph.

In our meeting on 12 July 2023, the 20mph scheme was discussed in relation to the villages of
Llanberis and Nantperis.

The Community Council's views were noted as follows:-

Action - the Clerk was asked to correspond with Cyngor Gwynedd objecting the initial change
and asked that Cyngor Gwynedd adapt the 20mph maximum speed zones as follows:-

Llanberis - from the direction of Llanberis, extend the 20mph zone through the area of
Pentrecastell in the direction of Nantperis to the end of the current 30mph zone.

Nantperis - from the direction of Llanberis, extend the 20mph zone in the direction of Bwich
Llanberis up to Pont Gwastadnant. Remain at 30mph from Pont Gwastadnant to the end of the
current 30mph zone.

The Community Council is confident that Cyngor Gwynedd would consider their application for
changes and support the application, and therefore operate in accordance with the Councillors of
Llanberis Community Councill's requirements.

If you believed that further discussion would be beneficial, then I am confident that it would be
possible for some of the Councillors to meet with you to further discuss the matter.

Page 22



I would like to note that the Community Council will meet again on 13 September 2023, which is
after the closing date of the public consultation.

I look forward to receiving your response to the application by Llanberis Community Council in
due course.

Sincerely,

Appendix B - Map of the proposed plan

Page 23



Llanberi:

Canoitan Chwaraeon e
Pagam
(Wiater Sports Canire)

Allwedd / Lagend

20mya Arfaethedig /
Froposed 20mph

I0mya Adaethedia /
Proposed 30mph

20mya yn rhinwedd golau stryd /
20mph by virtue of streetlighting

@ Hawifraint y Garon a hawliau
cronfa ddata

2023 Arclwg Ordnans. 100023387
@ Crown copyright and database

rights
2023 Ordnance Survey 100023387

Cyfeimed Cynllun / Plan Raference
A4t

Tudalen / Page
410f 58

A
G

Mae' cynigion gerchymyn Falllg wedfu cylwyna
ar y Cyrilumiau gyda’t shannau coch

cynod 30mya a' manna glas yn cnod
30mya. MaeT ardalioedd cren yn dyrodi 20mya
cherwyid gaieuada sin

The ratic crcer propasals have been presentsd
o0 plans wih the 1ed areas indicatng

30mph and the bise aneas

Indicaing 20mph. The ofange areas Indicaie
‘Zomph by wriae of svestihing

Llanberis - Pentre Castell

Appendix B - Map of the proposed plan

Page 24




Liyn Peris (Reservair)

Heap (dis)

Allwedd / Legend
20mya Adaethedia /

Proposed 20mph

30mya Adaethedia /
Proposed 30mph

20mya yn rhinwedd galau stryd /
20mph by virtue of streetlighting

& Hawifraint y Garon & hawlisu
cronfs ddata

2023 Arohwg Ordnans 100023367
8 Crown copyright and database

rights
2023 Ordnance Survey 100023387

Cyleimod Cynliun / Plan Reference
A4z

Tudalen / Page
42 of 59

A
G

Mae'r cynigion gorchymym Falllg wediu cylwyno
ar y Cynilriau gedat hanna coch yo

‘ehanwydd geisuadau stryd

The traic crder proposals have been preseniad
o0 plans wih the red areas indicaing

30mph and the biue areas

Indicaing 20mgh. The crange ansas indicate
Z0mpn by wase of SreeligRANg.

Llanberis - Pentre Castell

Appendix B - Map of the proposed plan

Page 25



20mya Arfaethedia /

Proposed 20mph

30mya Arfaethedig /

Proposed 30mph

20mya yn thinwedd golau stryd /
20mph by virtue of streetlighting

Allwedd / Legend

Gwastadnant

Nant Peris, Gwastadnant

Page 26



Agenda Item 6.1

PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 1

Application C21/1220/42/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 16/12/2021

Application Full

Type:

Community: Nefyn

Ward: Nefyn

Proposal: Demolition of existing dwelling and construct a new

dwelling in its place, and work to stabilise the cliffs

L ocation: Morlais L6n Penrallt, Nefyn, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53

6EP

Summary of the

Recommendation: 7O APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 27


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=44980
https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=44980

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

Description:

Members are reminded that this application was deferred at a previous meeting of the planning
committee held on 17 July. At that time, it was resolved to defer the decision in order to conduct
a site visit and have an opportunity to see the site in the context of its location.

Full application for the demolition of existing dwelling and construct a new house in its place as
well as work to stabilise the sea cliffs. Externally, the new house would include a ridge roof
finished in dark zinc and the finishes of the exterior walls would be a combination of timber
boards on the upper floor and natural stone on the lower floors.

The site and existing building is located by the foot of the cliffs of Nefyn Beach. The cliffs have
been designated as the Clogwyni Pen LIyn Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and
Porthdinllaen to Porth Pistyll Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). Nearby buildings and sites
to the north are a mix in terms of use and appearance, including residential houses, holiday
homes, a sailing club and boat stores. The site is outside the current Nefyn development boundary
with access gained to the site along the beach as well as a public footpath that leads down from
the top of the cliff to the south, past the site and then onwards to the beach below.

The existing site includes a house dating back to the end of the 1960s/beginning of the 1970s and
their form include flat roofs and elevations dating from this era. There is associated land to the
rear which forms part of the cliff, whilst a slipway leads down to the beach. Public footpath No
19 - Nefyn, leads down to the site from the top of the cliff and then runs along the front of the
existing building down to the beach.

The following information was submitted with the application:
e Protected Habitats and Species Survey
Design Statement
Geotechnical Report
Landscape Management Plan
Structural report
Repair/re-build costs report
For information, the above surveys and reports have been amended and updated because
of changes to the plan and in response to matters raised relating to
Biodiversity/ecological considerations and the stability of the cliffs.

The site and the wider area is within the L1yn and Enlli Landscape of Outstanding Historic
Interest designation. It is outside a nearby flood zone which relates to the beach only, and
approximately 6m outside the line of the coastal change management area as highlighted on the
shoreline management plan.

As in the case of the existing building, the new building would include three floors and within the
interior, there would be:

e Ground floor - garage/boat stores, hallway, wet-room, equipment room

e First floor - three bedrooms (one en-suite bedroom), bathroom, utility room, sports
room/bunkhouse

e Second floor - hallway/ shower-room/toilet, kitchen/dining room/open-plan dining room,
2 bedrooms (1 en-suite).

Page 28




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.8

1.9

2.1

2.2

2.3

Elements of the proposal have been amended since the original submission because of the
comments received. The exterior finishes of the building have been changed following a comment
from the AONB Unit. Additional information and reports were received relating to protecting the
cliff and ecological matters after comments received from Natural Resources Wales, the
Biodiversity Unit and the public consultation. A second full consultation has been held regarding
the amendments and direct discussions have been held between the applicant's agent and officers
from Natural Resources Wales and the Council's Biodiversity Unit.

Originally, a part of the proposal involved diverting the existing public footpath which runs past
the site so that it would be re-located to be further from the building. Following discussions about
receiving comments on the proposal from the Council's Rights of Way Unit, Nefyn Town Council
and members of the Public, it was resolved that this proposal is too contentious and therefore the
path will be kept as it is.

Relevant Policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be made in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the seven well-being goals within the Act.
This report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable
development principle', as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council
has sought to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs.

Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026, adopted 31 July 2017
PCYFF 2: Development criteria

PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping

PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping

PS 5: Sustainable development

PS 6: Alleviating and Adapting to the Effects of Climate Change

AMG 4: Coastal Protection

AMG 5: Local Biodiversity Conservation

PS 19: Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment
TRA 4: Managing transport impacts

PS 17: Settlement strategy

TAI 13: Rebuilding of residential dwellings

Page 29




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

AT 1: Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and
Gardens

PS 20: Preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets
Also relevant in this case is:

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): Replacement Dwellings and Conversions in the
Countryside

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11 - February 2021)
Technical Advice Note 12: Design
Technical Advice Note 5: Planning and nature conservation
Technical Advice Note 14: Coastal Planning

3. Relevant Planning History:

3.1 It does not appear that there are recent planning applications relating to this site.
Y21/0369 - Pre-application enquiry for the demolition of the existing house and construction of a
replacement dwelling. It was noted in terms of the demolition and re-build policy that the
proposal could be acceptable in principle. However, it was reiterated that the site's sensitive
location meant that there would be a detailed inspection of any application due to its location
close to statutory designations as well as matters relating to the stability of the nearby cliffs,
Biodiversity, etc., and that the proposal should be discussed with relevant bodies before
submitting a formal application. Some changes have been made to the plans received as a part of
the enquiry and those submitted as a part of the existing Planning application.

4. Consultations:

Community/Town Council: To refuse: Not many changes have been made to what had been

submitted initially, with the exact concerns arising
1. Against moving the line of the public footpath
2. An overdevelopment of the site

3. An alien and intrusive building in a beautiful area which is an Area
of Special Scientific Interest as well as an ACA / Europe 4 Instability
of the clay cliffs and the associated risks / Council report Gwynedd
Environment 2021 and recent Rhyg Estate report.

Page 30



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Transportation Unit:

Natural Resources Wales:

Welsh Water:

Public Protection Unit;

Rights of Way Unit:

Not received

Several observations were received in response to the application and
to subsequent amendments. It is believed that the latest responses are
relevant:

1. We continue to have concerns regarding the proposed
development as submitted. However, we are satisfied that
these problems can be overcome by attaching the following
conditions to any planning permission granted:

Condition 1: Protected Sites (Construction environmental

Management Plan)
Condition 2: Biosecurity

2. For clarity, here is the response to the Appropriate
Assessment carried out by the Biodiversity Unit: To confirm,
and in accordance with the previous response, that we
believe that the appropriate management measures and
mitigation measures proposed will ensure that there will not
be a detrimental impact on the two Special Conservation
Area (SAC) (in accordance with the Habitats and Species
Conservation Regulations 2017, as amended). This
corresponds with the conclusion of the Appropriate
Assessment carried out (Emily Meilleur, undated,
C21.1220.42.LL Morlais Lon Penrallt, Nefyn AA HRA final
doc), and sent to us on 04/05/2023 and therefore we agree
with the conclusions of the assessment.

Standard response and advice in relation to drainage arrangements
such as not allowing surface water to connect to the public sewerage
network, SUDS matters, location of the company's equipment and
the need to submit an application if there is a wish to connect to the
public network.

Not received

Numerous discussions were held regarding the matter of diverting the
public footpath following concerns highlighted by the members of the
public, the community council, the local member and the officers of
the rights of way unit. In due course, confirmation was received from
the agent that they were going to leave the path exactly as it is located
presently and amend the plans to reflect that.

In response, the paths team confirmed that this was a wise decision
under the circumstances and that information had been received to
show how the building will be protected, whilst also allowing safe

Page 31




PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Biodiversity Unit:

Land Drainage Unit

access to members of the public.

A Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) has been carried out by
the Biodiversity Unit in accordance with regulation 63 of the Habitats
Regulations 2017 (as amended). It concludes that the work to
stabilise the cliff will not affect the designations (SAC/SSSI) and that
there would be no harmful impact on the habitats of Clogwyni Pen
LIyn (SAC) in the short or long term, and also there would be no
harmful impact on the marine environment of Pen Llyn a'r Sarnau
SAC, its habitats and species.

In order to ensure that the habitats, species and function of the
ACA/SSSI are protected, suitable protection conditions must be
imposed during the demolition and construction period so that the
cliff habitats are protected.

As in the case of other matters relating to the site, numerous
discussions were held regarding the issue of cliff stability following
concerns highlighted by members of the public, the community
council, the local member and YGC engineers. In response, the YGC
Chief Engineer notes that the proposal to install a system to batten
and anchor the soil and a landslide restriction system to accompany
the design statement. As a few comments are subjective, the report
has been completed by competent and experienced individuals who
are obviously satisfied with the findings of the report as it is.

Page 32




PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Public Consultation:

A notice was posted on the site and nearby residents were notified.
The advertisement period has expired, and several letters
/correspondences of objection were received on the following
grounds:

e It would not be in-keeping/unacceptable design

e Over-development of the site, disrupting the character of the
local area

e Concerns about landslides affecting the nearby

buildings/users of public footpaths and the area in general

Environmental harm

Harm to the historical landscape

The land is too unstable for such a building

Intrusive and alien development in a beautiful and sensitive

area

e It involves felling several mature Jacana trees and blackthorn
hedges that have stabilised the cliffs, since the roots support
the topsoil from slipping. The location is full of bird nests
and wild animals.

e Stabilisation steps on sites near the sea are unwise since the
associated salt makes the iron corrode particularly where the
plastic is at its weakest in the knots that hold the structure in
place.

Originally, several objections were raised regarding moving the
public footpath, and since this is no longer a part of the proposal, it is
no longer a material consideration.

As well as the above objections, objections were received that were
not material planning objections and these included:

e It would turn the area into another Abersoch
e The site is within the AONB

Letters / correspondence were received supporting / providing
observations on the application on grounds of:

e There would be an improvement to the views of the local
area/current building is an eyesore

e The design/materials and pitch roof convey a more traditional
appearance

e The work to stabilise the cliff would be beneficial and would
protect the users of the paths

e The work would improve the sea wall

We note here the times when the proposal was amended, a full
second consultation was held and therefore every opportunity was
given to submit comments on the proposal in its amended form, as
well as what had been submitted originally.

Page 33




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

51

5.2

Assessment of the material planning considerations:

The principle of the development

The proposal involves demolishing the existing house on the site and erecting a new house in its
place. The site in question is located outside the Nefyn development boundary. The requirements
of policy PS 5 notes that priority should be given to the effective use of land and infrastructure,
prioritising the re-use of previously used land and buildings, wherever possible. In this case, a
dwelling already existed, and the site was already developed, therefore the proposal satisfied the
general requirements of policy PS 5 of the Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan
(JLDP).

Policy TAI 13 of the LDP specifically deals with the rebuild of houses and lists a series of criteria
that must be adhered to (where appropriate) in order to approve such plans. Below, this
application is discussed in the context of the relevant criteria:

1. Outside development boundaries ... the existing house has a legal residential use;

This site is located outside the development boundary and the legal residential use of the existing
house remains valid. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal complies with this criterion.

2. The building is not listed;
The existing building is not listed.

3. The existing dwelling is of no particular architectural and/or historic and/or visual
merit, for which it should be conserved;

The existing property is of a relatively simple design and conveys a building dating from the
60s/70s. There are no prominent features worth keeping in the existing building. The appearance
and condition of the existing building does not make a positive contribution to the visual
amenities of the local area and it certainly includes features that would possibly no longer be
acceptable in such a location, such as the extensive flat roof.

4. Outside development boundaries, it is impossible to retain the existing building
through renovating it or extending it and/or it is possible to demonstrate that repairing the
existing building is not economically practical,

A Structural Report was submitted by a competent company which has noted that there are
substantial defects in the existing building that would need to be considered prior to carrying out
further work on the building. The costs of improving, repairing, and altering in order to meet the
requirements of the owner and current standards would likely be substantial and prohibitive. The
viability of retaining the existing building and improving it, instead of re-building is questioned,
and in this respect, consideration must be given to the demolition and construction of a new
building that would create less structural risk.

In addition, a Repairs and Rebuild Costs Report was submitted by a company of chartered
surveyors, listing and comparing repair and re-build costs. There is a marked difference between
both, with higher costs to repair and improve the existing building, compared with demolishing
and constructing a new building.

5. Outside development boundaries, the proposed house does not replace a caravan or a
holiday chalet which has legal residential use;

Page 34




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

This criterion is not relevant to this application.

6. Outside the Coastal Change Management Area, a house to be rebuilt must be located
on the same footprint as the existing building unless relocating within the curtilage can be
shown to reduce its visual impact and its impact on local amenities;

The new house would be located on the footprint of the current building, with the part to the rear
extending out slightly more than the existing house on the upper floors. There is an existing
terraced area on the gable end of the building and the proposal includes a similar area, but on a
slightly greater scale.

7. Outside development boundaries, the siting and design of the total new development
should be of a similar scale and size and should not create a visual impact significantly
greater than the existing dwelling in order that it can be satisfactorily absorbed or
integrated into the landscape. In exceptional circumstances a larger well-designed
dwelling that does not lead to significant greater visual impact could be supported,;

Many have referred to the 'alien’ design that would not be in-keeping within this specific area and
if approved, it would open the door to other unacceptable developments. What makes a good
design is of course a matter of opinion, but it is believed that the plan proposed offers a quality
building that will replace a defective building, not only in terms of its condition, but also in terms
of its appearance. This element will be discussed in greater detail in the report.

8. Areas at risk of flooding and outside the Coastal Change Management Area;

Even though the site abuts the beach and coastline, it is outside a flood zone and coastal change
management area. In terms of flood matters, NRW have confirmed that the plans as submitted
show a finished floor level of 5.475m AOD, which is higher than the extreme sea levels projected
for a AEP 0/5% flood event in 2121 (around 4.6m AOD). Therefore, they are satisfied that the
building will comply with the criteria noted in Section A1.14 of Technical Advice Note 15.

The site is also outside a Coastal Change Management Area. Nevertheless, YGC in their role as
experts on coastal change management matters state that the development is within coastal unit
PU 15.3 'Porth Nefyn West', as defined in the West Wales Shoreline Management Plan 2 (SMP2).
The recommendation in SMP2 is to hold the current line of the shoreline in this area in the
short/medium term, and for this reason, the area is not listed as a CCMA in appendix 6 of the
Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (2017). However, we are aware that there
is a threat of landslides within the cliff above the development site, and for this reason the
developer is introducing measures to manage this risk.

9. Exceptionally, when a house is suitable to live in, or a house had people living in it
recently is destroyed by accident, planning consent for a new, replacement house can be
given. Evidence must be provided regarding the status and previous condition of the
building and the cause and scale of the damage.

Not relevant

10. The original building is demolished and, where appropriate, external buildings are
demolished when the new house is completed:

Demolishing the existing building would be inevitable in order to execute this proposal.

11. That permitted development rights are removed.

Page 35



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.3

54

55

5.6

5.7

5.8

It is deemed that there is justification to include such conditions to ensure an orderly development
of the site and to protect the amenities of nearby residents.

Given the above, is considered that the principle of demolishing a house and constructing a new
house on this site is acceptable in respect of Policy TAI 13.

Visual amenities

Policies PCYFF 3 and 4 of the Local Development Plan promote good building design by
ensuring that proposals conform to a series of criteria by aiming to safeguard the recognised
features and character of the landscape and the local environment, safeguarding the visual
character by ensuring that building materials are of a high standard and in-keeping with the
character and appearance of the local area and suitably landscapes the site.

Policy PCYFF 3 of the LDP states that all proposals will be expected to demonstrate high quality
design which fully considers the natural, historic and built environmental context. It also
emphasises that proposals will only be permitted if they can comply with a series of criteria.
Additionally, Policy PCYFF 4 requires that all proposals integrate into their surroundings and a
landscape scheme should give consideration, amongst other matters, to the natural contours of the
landscape, and demonstrate how the development respects and protects local and strategic views
as well as respect, retain and complement any existing positive natural features.

In terms of the size/height of the proposed building, the plan submitted entitled comparative
sections shows the difference between the current and proposed buildings in terms of the levels,
measured by using ordnance datum information, i.e. measures established above sea level. From
the plans, it can be seen that the proposed ground floor level is the same as the existing ground
floor level, i.e. 5.475 above sea level. The upper floors would also be more or less at the same
level as existing. The length of the new building is also the same as the current building with the
front of the new building in the same location as the current building with a section of the back
only extending outwards slightly more. The most prominent change is the height of the ridge of
the building. The height of the existing flat roof is 13.568 above sea level, whilst the height o the
pitch roof would be 15.384 above sea level. Or to put it in its context in terms of the height of the
building itself, the height of the existing building from the floor is 7.9m, whilst the height of the
new building would be 9.7m by comparison. Therefore, there is a difference of around 1.8m
between the existing and what would be constructed here. Nevertheless, this is a change that has
been recommended since the pitch roof would be better in keeping with the form and existing
features of nearby buildings. Indeed, a pitch roof would appear more ‘traditional’ in terms of its
form than the existing flat roof.

The plot for development is narrow due to the presence of the cliff behind, the public footpath
and the beach to the front. Therefore, the availability of additional land is restricted due to the
nature and form of the site. Except for the increasing height of the right and the slight increase in
the rear elevation of the upper floors and external terrace, it is not believed that the building
would fill more on the plot than the existing building to an unacceptable degree.

Currently, there is a three-storey building with a flat roof and timber decking to the side. In terms
of design, it is uniform with straight lines with finishes in a combination of timber, glass and iron.
Due to its beach-side location, the building is very prominent whilst the building can also be seen
from nearby public footpaths and from the top of the sea-hill and coastal path. There is a variety
of other buildings on this part of the beach, including historical stone buildings, old seaside huts
made of zinc and timber and more recent huts with flat roofs. The existing building does not
make a positive contribution to the local views and it does not assimilate well with the traditional
buildings in the vicinity. Therefore, it is believed that there is a need to support the principle of
demolishing the existing building and construct a new, more suitable, building on the site. In
terms of the plans, it can be seen that a number of designs have been considered and that an

Page 36




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

59

5.10

5.11

512

5.13

5.14

obvious process has been followed in order to reach what was submitted. It is believed that a
building with a pitch roof and of a relatively simple design as proposed better assimilates with the
other buildings in the surrounding area. Further consideration was given to the design, materials
and colour following comments relating to the pre-application enquiry and it can be seen that
changes to the exterior finishes convey the comments provided at the time by the AONB Unit
(although the site is not within the AONB).

The exterior materials selected are a mix of dark timber on the upper floor and natural stone on
the lower floors. Timber and stone materials are in keeping with the location and conveys
common appearances of nearby buildings as well as the broader area. The same stone would be
used to create the retaining walls. Including a zinc roof would convey the historical appearances
of beach buildings and would give a more 'traditional’ appearance to a building near the coastline.
It is believed that the use of zinc on the roof with timber and natural stone on the lower floors,
would assist to reduce the visual impact of the dwelling proposed. Although using zinc on the
roof is slightly unusual, it is believed that it would blend into the landscape and would change
regularly to reflect the surrounding light and weather.

It is acknowledged that the proposed house would be larger in size than the current property but a
total of 11.2m?2 is obtained over two floors which is not a substantial change at all and is certainly
not an over-development o the site since it is at more or less the same scale and on the same
footprint as the existing building. The external area on the gable end of the building is more than
what is currently there, but again, not to a completely unacceptable degree.

Obviously, it is accepted that the new form of the roof, namely a pitch roof instead of a flat roof,
would be higher than the existing property, and therefore would make it more prominent but not
to a completely unreasonable degree. As a result, it is not believed that it would stand out as a
completely incongruous or contradictory to the general development pattern seen in nearby
buildings. It is not considered that the proposed new house will impact to a totally unacceptable
level on the character and appearance of the site or the surrounding area in terms of appearance,
scale, height or mass.

It must be acknowledged that the applicant has amended the proposal in an attempt to respond to
concerns voiced and it is now believed that the proposal would add to and improve the character
and appearance of the site and the area in terms of its appearance. There is no objection to the
type of design proposed in terms of the elevations of the external walls and the form and scale of
the proposed openings since the existing openings are large and prominent and the finishes appear
to be dated.

The explanation of Policy PCYFF 3 states: ‘the setting and design of new developments must be
based on a thorough understanding of the site itself and of its broader background and seek to
obtain as much benefit as possible from the site's features. This will require careful consideration
of the site layout. No two sites share the same landscapes, contours, relationship with
surrounding buildings, street pattern, and features. The proximity of poor quality or indistinct
development is not a justification for standard or poor design solutions. New development should
integrate into its surrounding whilst seeking to enhance the overall character of the locality'..
There is no doubt that the change would be local compared to what currently exists and what is
proposed, however, consideration needs to be given if the change would be to a totally
unacceptable extent especially so bearing in mind its relationship within the locality. The existing
dwelling in terms of its design, condition and elevations does not make a positive contribution to
the quality of the landscape. Although poor decisions made in the past is no justification for
approving new developments to take their place, consideration must be given in this case to the
value of disposing of the existing building and the proposal to replace it.

Although it would be higher, the proposed development would be better in terms of its
architecture and therefore it would be visually better than the existing property. The

Page 37



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

development's design responds to the existing form and gradient of the site and surrounding land,
which makes the building sit comfortably within the landscape. The current building has a very
restricted architectural quality, and as such, it cannot be considered that it makes any positive
contribution to the character of the area. Although it has a simple form, it is very prominent, and
in its current condition, it creates substantial harm to the landscape in which it is located.
Therefore, it is not believed that there is any value in attempting to keep the dwelling in its
current form, or even in attempting to reproduce the style of the property and extensions of a
similar design. On this basis, the development proposed would not harm the character and
appearance of the area substantially, and it would take advantage of the opportunity to improve
the appearance of the site.

Although it would be visible from public vistas, including nearby public footpaths, it can mainly
be seen against the backdrop of Nefyn Beach cliffs and the existing landscape. Consequently, the
proposal would not to too excessive in public vistas, and it would not lead to a substantial loss of
views. The proposal would represent an improvement in the general appearance of the site, which
is currently substantially degraded by the existing dwelling.

Having weighed up all relevant considerations, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable and
complies with the criteria 1 and 2 of policy PCYFF 3 and points 3 and 4 of Policy PCYFF 4 of
the LDP.

The site and wider area lie outside the LIyn AONB. Nevertheless, observations were presented by
the AONB Unit on the pre-application enquiry and it can be seen that suggestions regarding
suitable finishes have been followed. There is no objection to the proposal in terms of the impact
on the AONB because of the distance between the site and the closest parts of the designation to
the west and east.

The site also lies within the LIyn and Enlli Island Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest.
The proposal involves the construction of a new house, and it is considered that the impact of the
proposal would be local and would not have a wider impact on the historic landscape. Therefore,
it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms of Policy AT 1 of the LDP.

General and residential amenities

The buildings located closest to the site are the sailing club and boat stores, with residential
houses further away to the north. It is not believed that there will be a direct impact on the
residential amenities as a result of the proposal and that some disruption could occur on occasions
during the development of the site, that would be temporary and not in the long term. It is
intended to include a condition to agree on the building management plan details, which would
include a reference to working hours, movements, etc. It is believed that this would be reasonable
protection, considering the proposal. It must be borne in mind that a public beach is located
immediately in front of this site and nearby buildings, therefore, it is believed that some
disruption already happens. It is not believed that the long-term impact would be unacceptable,
and therefore it is believed that the proposal is acceptable based on the relevant requirements of
policy PCYFF 2.

Transport and access matters

Unusually with an application for a new house, matters relating to vehicular access and parking
provision are not completely relevant in this case due to the location of the site. It is not believed
that there is a substantial change in the proposal from what has been established with the existing
arrangement continuing in terms of vehicle use.

Page 38




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

As already noted above, originally there was a proposal to divert a nearby public footpath so that
it would follow a new line further away in front of the building. Having received a number of
objections regarding this element and having discussed the matter with officers from the Rights of
Way Unit, the agent removed this element of the proposal and so the line of current path will
continue as it is, along the front of the building. It is believed that a standard condition needs to
be included to ensure that the path is maintained during the period of developing the site so that
access continues for users.

Biodiversity matters

Considerable discussions have been held regarding the impact of the proposal on local
biodiversity and the area's designations. Regardless of the early concerns highlighted by the
Biodiversity Unit and NRW, namely the two specialist advisers in this field, consideration must
be given to their latest comments submitted after amending the plans, the relevant information
and/or present additional information.

There is no doubt that such a location could raise concerns in terms of ecological matters and this
would be worse if the site was not already developed. But this is a plot of land that has been
developed previously with a permanent building and use of a site for residential purposes. The
assessments made to the impact of the proposal notes clearly what is expected and as per usual,
strict conditions are imposed to ensure that the development is maintained in full compliance with
the findings and recommendations of the ecological experts.

These measures have been assessed by the Biodiversity Unit and NRW and although the initial
concerns, they now accept that this could be overcome by including a series of relevant
conditions. Before approving a development that is likely to have a significant impact on the SAC
or SSSI, a planning authority must conduct an appropriate assessment of the implications to the
designated features, consult with NRW and address the views of NRW. In this case, an
assessment of this type was carried out by the Biodiversity Unit and a consultation on its content
was carried out with NRW and it was agreed that it will not have a detrimental impact on the
site's integrity, considering also according to the requirements of any measures, planning
conditions or additional obligations. Consequently, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable
based on the relevant requirements of policies AMG 5, PS 19 and the relevant advice provided in
NCT 5.

Any other considerations

Stability of the cliff - Having demolished the current building, the proposal involves some land
excavation work. It is also intended to reinforce the existing retaining wall between the land and
the beach whilst the existing retaining wall is to be improved or replaced with a new one behind
the building.

Public safety is paramount to be protected, and its development will not be approved without a
full assessment of that having been carried out. Experts in the field have presented their findings
and recommendations for the work of stabilising the cliffs and protecting the building and its
residents, other building owners and users of the nearby public footpaths. The credibility of these
professional experts and what is recommended is completely valid and they are accountable to
what is expressed therein. YGC engineers have provided views on these specialist reports and
have noted that the report has been completed by competent and experienced individuals who are
obviously satisfied with the findings of the report as it is.

Page 39




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.27

5.28

5.29

5.30

5.31

5.32

Planning Policy Wales (PPW) clearly states "developments should not be approved in areas
where the coastline is changing unless the risks and outcomes are understood and that they can
be managed acceptably over the period of the development”. This national guidance goes on to
confirm that "One of the key planning principles is that risks on the surface and below surface
are understood and that they can be conveyed effectively to developers, in order to steer
investment decisions, and their opportunity for the public and others that could have concerns
about devastation, contamination and other physical or chemical restrictions that affects land.
Early action, based on the prudent principle, not only reduces costs but mitigates the potential of
a long-term risk to future communities and generations".

What is noted as "de-risking™, means that there is an opportunity "for every stakeholder to play
their part to improve transparency and awareness and data and information are increasingly
shared and fine-tuned. Conditions should be created where plan strategies, policies and
proposals are based on initial information about the risk of a site or area that can be combined
on a strategic level to facilitate the work of creating and drawing up better plans / places and
ensure early awareness of potential risks as an integral part of the planning process".

As already noted in paragraph 5.36 above, PPW notes that it will be the "developer's
responsibility...to provide any initial necessary information to support its proposal and to conduct
a detailed risk assessment, as required, in the step of making a planning application”. It is
believed that this has been done in this case by employing field experts which have assessed and
provided clear recommendations regarding the proposal based on their professional opinion. They
have presented information on the conditions of the land, the structure of the soil, unstable land
and geotechnical matters. What it proposed and managed through a series of appropriate
conditions will form a part of the appropriate plan for the site, that will also manage the risks
arising during the steps of building the development.

Within the section which refers to De-risking Development in PPW, it notes "The planning
system should guide development to reduce the risk from natural or human-made hazards
affecting the land surface or sub-surface. The aim is not to prevent the development of such land,
though in some cases that may be the appropriate response. Rather it is to ensure that
development is suitable and that the physical, geo-technical, chemical and other relevant
constraints on the land, including the anticipated impacts which climate change may have, are
taken into account at all stages of the planning process."

Therefore, when considering the features of this application, full attention was given to the nature
of the hazards that could cause risk to health and the environment, in order to ensure that it would
not proceed without an understanding of the risks, including matters relating to subsidence and
landslides. Nevertheless, as PPW confirms "Responsibility for determining the extent and effects
of surface and subsurface hazards remains with the developer. It is for the developer to ensure
that the land is suitable for the development proposed, as a planning authority does not have a
duty of care to landowners. However, by taking a de-risking approach at the plan level planning
authorities will create the conditions for risks to be addressed...To facilitate the gathering of
evidence to inform de-risking approaches planning authorities should seek to require technical,
risk-based information and evidence from developers which is capable of being put to further
use."

Therefore, considering the assessments made, the specialist opinion provided and the lack of
information or technical and specialist information to contradict by proving beyond doubt that the
plans and measures made are unsuitable, it must be accepted that the construction plan and
mitigation measures proposed are appropriate to protect the assets that already exist, and the
proposed development itself. Therefore, it is believed that the proposal is in accordance with
criteria 1 and 2 of policy PCYFF 2, which states that a proposal must show that it complies with
all relevant policies in the LDP as well as national policies and guidance.

Page 40



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.33

6.1

6.1

7.1

Response to the public consultation

It is acknowledged that there has been great interest in this application during the consultation
period, with several objections and letters of support received regarding the proposal. It is
considered that all material planning matters have received appropriate attention as a part of the
above assessment. A decision is made based on a full consideration of all the material planning
considerations including the relevant observations received during the public consultation and
that no one was let down when considering this application.

Conclusions:

This application has obviously involved some scrutiny due to several specialist considerations
that would not normally be found to the same degrees at least, with the majority of Planning
applications to demolish and re-build residential housing. Competent companies and/or
individuals have assessed the information to hand and have expressed their views. The findings
and recommendations of the specialist reports will be included as formal conditions so that the
development must be fully maintained in accordance with the recommended measures, and
therefore, by doing this, the development would be maintained in full with the general consent
agreed. Should the situation change in terms of amending the proposal in response to a situation
that arises, then there would be a need to respond at that time to any new situation. However, for
the purposes of this current application, the situation is clear in relation to the specialist
information being assessed and found to be acceptable.

Having considered the above and all the relevant matters including the local and national policies
and guidance, as well as all the observations received, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable
and therefore is in accordance with the requirements of the relevant policies as noted above.

Recommendation:

To approve — conditions

1. Time

2. In accordance with plans

3. Materials

o

. Building Control Plan

82

. Biodiversity Matters

6. Matters relating to the cliff

~

. Protect the public footpath

8. Withdrawal of PD rights

Page 41




Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 11/11/2022

1 Extent of stabilisation works sD 30/03/22
extended
first issue sD 09/12/21
rev  description by date

Morlais, Nefyn, LL53 6EP
Blackham Family

Location Plan @ Location Plan

1:1250 _
jobno.  drawing no. rev status scale @ A3
266 A(P)-01 1 Planning 1:1250

vowns merkireey oraicecn 2

02921 672672 www.downsmerrifield.com




¢ abed

Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

Site Plan (Existing)

1:250

&

2 Pathleft as existing sD 27104122
1 Foolpath reveried to original S 2101721
location
firstissue s 0912121
rer desciplon by date

Morlais, Nefyn, LL53 6EP
Blackham Family

Existing Site Plan

scale @ A3

56”6 75\?35202 5 ::‘;nning 1:250

NTINNUTITNTIE, |

02921 672672 www.downsmerrifield.com

refer todmensions wharapravidad - 60 N scale from drawing

© Downs Merfieid Avchitods 2018

50 40 30 20 00

90



@ SaQth- Existing
19’30

[

Cynllun DiwygiedigJ

Amended Plan

‘17179

North Existing
1:100

2} West- Existing
J 1:100 ]

East- Existing
1:100

first issue sD 09/12i21
rev description by date

Morlais, Nefyn, LL53 6EP
Blackham Family

Existing Elevations

jobno.  drawing no. rev status scale @ A3

266 A(P)-04 Planning 1:100

DOWNS RERRIFIELD arohitects .

02921 672672 www.downsmerrifield.com

® Downs Menrifield Architects 2018
refer 1o dmensions where provided




ey

Cynllun Diwygiedig

Amended Plan

|

;3—> Top Floor (Existing)
1:100

N
I Awws)

First Floor (Existing)
1:100

@ Ground Floor (Existing)
] 1:100

first issue
. rev description

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 11/11/2022

sD 09/12/21
by date

Blackham Family

Morlais, Nefyn, LL53 6EP

B Existing Plans

jobno.  drawing no.

66 A(P)-03

rev

status scale @ A3
Planning 1:100

TELD architects .

02921 672672 www.downsmerrifield.com

i Downs Menrifield Architects 2018
refer 1o dimensions where provided




ot abed

Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

Site Plan (Proposed
@ 1:250 ( p ) @

INew footpath for access|

Existing footpath

2 Pathleftas exsting sD 27104122
1 Footpath reverted to original  SD 21101121
location
first issue sD 0912121
rev descripton by date
Morlais, Nefyn, LL53 6EP
Blackham Family

Proposed Site Plan

jobro_ drawingno. e seus scale @ A3
266 A(P)-10 2 Planning 1:250
vomns wenvrereny arnivecs [

02921 672672 www.downsmerrifield.com




Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

Cynllunio

"\ South Proposed "4 West Proposed
(1,> 1:100 p @j p

1:100
Standing seam roof - pre-weathered Anthra Zinc by VM Zinc

ﬂ Charred timber vertical cladding - Raven by Permachar

Decking - Enhanced Grain Smoked Oak by Millboard | Ground, first and boundary walls - natural stone from the local quarry

o
(3 East Proposed
K 1:100
2 Path left as existing SD 27/04/22
1 Footpath reverted to original SD 21/01/21
location
first issue sD 09/12/21
rev  description by date

Morlais, Nefyn, LL53 6EP
Blackham Family

Proposed Elevations

jobno.  drawing no. status scale @ A3

266 MP}12 2 pignig T 1rieo
@ North Proposed DOWNS WERRIFIELD

13100 02921 672672 www.downsmerrifield.com - ¢




~»" Top Floor (Proposed
Csj 1:1%0 ( P )

Cynllun Diwygiedig

Amended Plan

Cynllunio

(‘2" First Floor (Proposed)

1:100

Games Room / Bunk

1\ Ground Floor (Proposed)
1:100
1 Path left as existing SD 27104122
first issue 8D 09/12/21
rev description by date
Morlais, Nefyn, LL53 6EP
Blackham Family

Proposed Plans £
jobmo. drawing no. rew status scale @A3 % %
266 A(P-11 1 Planning 1100 %
vowns meRkireny crcnicecrs 3

02921 672672 www.downsmerrifield.com éé




Path left as existing - 27104122
1 Footpath reverted to original SD 21/01/21
location

first issue SD 09/12/21
description by date

Cynllun Diwygiedig N :

Amended Plan s e :

Proposed Views

jobno.  drawing no. stalus scale @ A3

266 A(P)13 2 Planning 1ot

[Cynllunio]
DOWNS NERRIFIELD

Derbyn - 11/11/2022

02921 672672 www.downsmerrifield.com




Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 11/11/2022

0G abed

Existing Section
1:80

Level 03 Existing Ridgs g~
13563

Lavel 02 Upper floor g
10728

Laval 01 Mazzanin Uppar ~agr

8275
Level D1b Mezzanne Lowsr g
7845

(21 Proposed Section
TS 1080

Laval 04 New Ridge g
15384

Level 02 Upper ficor ~ag”
10728

Level D1 First Ficor “agp
a07s

2 panicam cwang o mom
| rovpmmevdboond © 2z
-
e o e
Moriais, Nefyn, LLS3 6EP
Blacktar Family
Comparative Sections
B e e g
26 K21 2 Pancing ok
POWNS AERRITIEND toehinect .

02021 672672 e dmnsrannnkd




Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

Cynllunio

1 Path left as existing SD 27/04/22
first issue sb 09/02/22 8
rev  description by date

20

Morlais, Nefyn, LL53 6EP
Blackham Family

Comparative Views

drawing no. rev

266 AP)22 1 Planning
DOWNS NERRIFIELD architects .

scale @ A3

70

refer to dimensions where provided - do not scale from drawing
50 40 30

© Downs Merrifieid Architects 2018

02921 672672 www.downsmerrifield.com




2G abed

Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

KEY
Clogwyni Pen Llyn SAC and Porth
Dinllaen i Borth Pistyll SSSI Boundaries

IZ Wales Coastal Path
Public right of way

Existing tree planting

Indicative location of sespages =

Indicative location of spring

Proposed extent of dliff stabilisation werks

including soil naills, anchors and netting

Total Area: 1516m2

Proposed area of stabilisation (45% of area)
Refer to Landscape Management Plan
(223_MOR_LEMP)

Proposed managed area of stabilisation (35% of area)
Refer to Landscape Management Plan
(223_MOR_LEMP)

Proposed area of non-intervention (20% - unstabilised)

\Q‘nam accesd\|

V.
2
£

|

Schedule A - Proposed native hedgerow planting

Refer (0 Landscape Management Plan
(223_MOR_LEMP)

Proposed pioneer habitats

Refer to Landscape Management Plan

Plant Name Specification %mix m2  density Total
perm2 _Plants
Crataegus monogyna 1+1Bare root, 60- 80cm whip 35 1519 5 7%
Prunus spinosa 1+1 Bare root, 60 - 80cm whip 35 1519 5 7%
Ulex europaeus 1+1 Bare root, 60- 80cm whip 0 13.02 5 &
Total m2 434 217

(223_MOR_LEMP)

Proposed native planting along footpath
(Refer to Schedule A for details)

[O]
(o]
]
[
-
Y
=
E
7]

Schedule B - Proposed flower-rich grassland planting

Plant Name Specification Smix w2 Gramsper Total
) ! m2__ Grams
ey g‘;’:;sﬁ)d Sﬂ;“’: 3‘;;:'; ?;fi'?;li)p lanting Wales Wildflower Meadow Seed Mix Habitat Aid 00 100 4 400
Tl Total m2 100 400
REVISIONS

[ —— Gee 5 i PLANNING DRAWING o o e l d | .

T r— 06z A SR WO OB fon oS OL 2| sucknav FaLY and |studio

5 Pty e o0t i\ <h  DONOTSCALEFROM THIS DRAWNG 2| orolect

C  Proposed planing extended 010722 HA SR E MORLAIS_NEFYN scale: @ A3 1:250

D Addional nformaton ncuted 106z HA SR 2| rawng e dale: 27.06.2022 001

E New clemens ncladed 07102 HA SR 223_MOR_0700_GA dm( o E

rignal paper size (43) 287420









Vet - o
N
¢ w F

11/ \vaaaa,
NN A [
Y]y

s/




Agenda Iltem 6.2

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 2
Application C23/0432/11/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 26/05/2023

Application Full

Type:

Community: Bangor

Ward: Dewi - Bangor

Proposal: Removal of the existing helicopter landing pad and

construction of two new landing stages to support the
existing hospital. The work will include re-grading the soft
landscape to include a new access road, landing pads
including all surface water drainage, markings and
illuminated landing barriers, new safety fences and
enclosures to maintain the helicopters.

Helipad, Ysbyty Gwynedd, Penrhosgarnedd,, Bangor,
LL57 2PW

Location:

Summary of the
Recommendation: TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 56



https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=333264
https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=333264

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.
11

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.2

Description:

This is a full application for the creation of a new landing facility for helicopters near Ysbyty
Gwynedd in Bangor. The work would include:

e removing the existing helicopter landing pad
e creating two new landing areas by:
o re-grading the landscape and creating two embankments with a circular shaped
flat plot behind them
installation of hard standings for landing pads
surface water drainage work
installation of new illuminated landing barriers
erection of security fencing
creation of enclosures in order to maintain the helicopters
associated engineering work.

O 0O O O O O

As a result of an assessment of the current service, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board has
reported the need to upgrade and improve the provision for landing helicopters at Ysbyty
Gwynedd. It notes that the existing service has been very busy, particularly taking into account
the fact that the county's population doubles during the summer months, as well as the presence
of Eryri National Park in the area. The new facility would offer more capacity to receive patients
and would create a landing facility for a broader range of helicopters, 24 hours a day, 365 days a
year.

The landing pad is located approximately 150m to the east of the hospital, on a plot of sloped
land on an elevated site above the city, which, according to the Civil Aviation Authority, offers
very good flight paths into and out of the hospital grounds. The hospital stands on the southern
peripheries of Bangor Subregional Centre in the suburb of Penrhosgarnedd and a vast number of
developments have been recently approved within the hospital curtilage in order to maintain and
enhance the facilities available there. The site is also partly located within the buffer zone of
Crug Goetre Uchaf (CN376) Registered Monument.

The following documents were submitted to support the application:
o Feasibility report to improve the landing pad for helicopters at Ysbyty Gwynedd prepared
by the UK Civil Aviation Authority
e Arboriculture Assessment and Method Statement
e Ecological Appraisal

Relevant Policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be made in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

Under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 the Council has a duty not only to
carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable steps in exercising its functions to
meet its sustainable development (or well-being) objectives. This report has been prepared in
consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development principle', as set out in the
2015 Act, and in making the recommendation the Council has sought to ensure that the needs of
the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own

Page 57




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

needs. It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the
achievement of well-being objectives as a result of the proposed recommendation.

2.3 Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026 adopted 31 July 2017:-
PS 1: The Welsh Language and Culture
PS 19: Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment
PS 20: Safeguard and where relevant, improve heritage assets
ISA 2: Community Facilities
PCYFF2: Development criteria

PCYFF3: Design and place shaping

2.4 National Policies:

Planning Policy Wales, Edition 11, February 2021

TAN: Nature Conservation and Planning

TAN12: Design

3. Relevant Planning History:

3.1 A vast number of applications have been approved recently within the curtilage of the hospital in
order to improve the facilities.

4. Consultations:

Community/Town Council: Not received

Welsh Water: Standard conditions and notes for the applicant

Trees Unit: There is no need to remove any trees to make room for the

development and all engineering and construction work will be
located outside the roots protection zone of the surrounding trees.

There will be no detrimental impact on the site's arboricultural value.

Page 58




PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Welsh Government
(Transportation):

Natural Resources Wales:
North Wales Fire Service:

Land Drainage Unit:

Transportation Unit:

North Wales Police:
Cadw:

Public Protection:

Civil Aviation Authority:

Public Consultation:

The Welsh Government does not wish to instruct on this application.

No objection - observations for the applicant
No observations to offer

Due to the size and nature of the development, an application may
need to be submitted to the SuDS Approval Body to be approved
before construction work commences.

No observations to make as it is deemed that the proposal will not
adversely affect any road, or proposed road.

No observations to offer
Not received
Not received
Not received

A notice was posted on the site and the advertising period has
expired. No response was received to the consultation during the
statutory advertising period.

5. Material Planning Considerations:

Location, Design and Visual Impact

The principle of the development

5.1 Policy ISA 2 of the Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan supports plans that
maintain and enhance community facilities if they meet a series of criteria and the criteria that are
relevant to this plan are discussed below:

i. they are located within or adjoining development boundaries or they are located outside
development boundaries but within clusters where the proposal will provide an
essential facility to support the local community.

The site is located immediately adjacent to the Bangor development boundary.

iv. that the proposal is of an appropriate scale and type compared to the size, character and
function of the settlement.

Page 59




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

59

When considering the status of Bangor as a Sub-regional Centre, and the site's existing
use as the main health treatment location in North West Wales, it is believed that this
facility is completely appropriate for the nature of the location and status of the
settlement.

Therefore, it is considered that this is a scheme to enhance an essential service offered to the
communities of Gwynedd and that it meets the relevant criteria as listed under Criterion 1, policy
ISA 2 of the LDP and therefore the principle of the planning application is acceptable.

General Amenities

Generally, policies PCYFF 2 and PCYFF 3 of the Joint Local Development Plan encourage the
approval of proposals for new developments as far as they do not have a detrimental impact on
health, safety or the amenities of the residents of local properties or on the area in general.

This development is concealed from the majority of nearby viewpoints. Public footpath number
39 in the Community of Bangor runs past the northern boundary of the site, however, there is a
mature hedge between this path and the site. The majority of the views from the site are from a
distance and in the context of the existing developed site and the hospital nearby. When
considering the local landscape and existing trees and hedges surrounding the site, it is not
believed that there will be a significant change to the view of the site as observed from the
outside.

Of course, there is potential for noise and disturbance to emanate from this type of facility but this
is unlikely to be significantly worse than what already happens. There will not be a significant
increase in the use made of the site, instead, it will be possible to deal more efficiently with the
transport that needs to use the landing pads, particularly in an emergency when more than one
helicopter will need to land in a short space of time.

In addition, the site is approximately 200m from the nearest residential houses and it is not
believed that there will be a significant additional harm caused to the amenities of local residents
deriving from the development. Therefore, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable under the
requirements of policies PCYFF 2 and PCYFF 3 of the LDP.

Archaeological Matters

The site is also partly located within the buffer zone of Crug Goetre Uchaf (CN376) Registered
Monument, a mound that dates back to prehistoric times. Considering the distance between the
site and the monument, as well as the land formation and other developments between the two
locations, it is not believed that there will be any impact on the layout of the monument deriving
from this development and therefore the application is acceptable under policy PS 20 of the LDP.

Biodiversity Matters

The site is mainly located on green land with trees and shrubs around the boundaries. An
ecological assessment of the site was submitted and this concluded that there is no special
biodiversity interest to the site itself, although the boundaries are of significance to wildlife and
are visually important. The report recommends safeguarding biodiversity features by drawing up
a Conservation Building Control Plan and Biodiversity Management Plan for the site.

In addition, an arboriculture report was submitted, confirming that there would be no harm to the
trees and hedges from adhering to Iegnpropriaée measures when undertaking work on the site.
age 60




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.10

5.11

512

6.1

7.1

Therefore, it is believed, by imposing an appropriate condition to ensure that the
recommendations of the above reports are followed, that this development would be acceptable in
relation to policy PS 19 of the LDP.

Language Matters

In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, it is a duty when making a decision on a
planning application to consider the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that application. This
is reiterated further in para. 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 2021), and Technical
Advice Note 20. The Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 'Maintaining and Creating
Distinctive and Sustainable Communities' (adopted July 2019), provides further guidance on how
it is expected for Welsh language considerations to be incorporated in each relevant development.

It is noted that there are some specific types of development where the proposal will be required
to submit a Welsh Language Statement or Report on the Welsh Language Impact Assessment.
The thresholds in terms of when it is expected to submit a Statement/Report have been
highlighted in Policy PS1 of the Joint LDP, along with Diagram 5 of the SPG. In terms of the
type of developments in question, the following is noted: The proposal does not reach the
thresholds to submit a Welsh Language Statement or a Report on a Welsh Language Impact
Assessment. However, Appendix 5 of the SPG notes that every housing development, retail,
commercial or industrial development where there is no need to submit a Welsh Language Impact
Statement/Assessment should show how consideration has been given to the language.

The proposal submitted is for improvements to a community resource on a site that is already in
use for the same purpose and there will be no significant change in the nature or density of that
use. This is not a development where there is a need to submit a formal assessment of the impact
on the language and considering that this is fundamentally a proposal to improve the day-to-day
management of an existing facility, it is not believed that there will be any linguistic impact from
the development. Considering that Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board is a public body
with its own language policy, which is consistent with national standards, it is expected that any
signs displayed on the site will respect the historical culture of the area and will therefore comply
with policy PS 1 of the LDP.

Conclusions:

As a result of the above assessment, it is not considered that the proposal is contrary to any
relevant planning policy within the LDP, and that the proposed development is appropriate for the
site and that it would help achieve an objective of strategic importance. Consideration was given
to all material planning issues and it is not believed that the proposal is likely to cause any
unacceptable additional detrimental impact to nearby residents or the community in general.

Recommendation:
To approve the application subject to conditions relating to the following:

1. Time (five years)

2. Inaccordance with the plans

3. The recommendations of the Arboriculture Assessment and Method Statement and
Ecological Appraisal must be followed

4. Welsh Water Condition to protect the sewerage system.

Page 61



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Notes

1. Welsh Water
2. Natural Resources Wales
3. Land Drainage Unit

Page 62




ams

€9 abed

26/05/23

DERBYN - Cynllunio Cyngor Gwynedd

General Notes

1. Contra ya di i check i

2. Al of the designs are 1he sole propenty of TACF Arehitects L1d and may
nat be used withaut their written agréement

3. Al prints, specfications and theér copyright are the property of TACP
Architects L

4.0a rat scale off drawings

5. Al dimensions shail be checked oa site before cammencment of shop
drawings, manufaczure snd all discrepencies must be reparted 10 TACP
Atehiteets Lt

Dageription By Check
i e Baurehy Arercie WG

Convian

ek

Brcjunt il

Helipad YG

Draming Tiiw

Location Plan

Seale Oete Drawn By Checked By Office

1:1250@AL  05/24/23 MR GM  Wrexham

ey i S P T e e ey

2200402 HPYG -TACP- A-000 A

TACP Aschitects Ltd

Pembroke House

Edhce Way, Wreshim Technology Park,
Wrexiiam, LLLE YT
01978 781151

admin@tacparchiteers.co.k
W tacparchitects.co.uk
At bk Grane rsiiwe Gommatont Mg




mummumunmwm

| andteathersd ina the new

aonafety tone to sevimeter af new linding gl
i1 41 s CAAT rcorm st clationi. Safely margin
o ctain al |nrcing lighing, el wiloco watnt

i ko s by dcwrmashl vohirudse ixcom
n:mﬁmww vaith s road knebe, and surfasn

tinaing pd.

ol niew landing pad inline weth CAAT

st
arri st out by spcciaat, EmEsnbmont

o s

‘ai und fe

i i puabrg o e

searing o 1= S actsep) v’ deinis.

[ e mng s waas
:.uummh.»-u..{ e concrese
it 1 g
/' luwm-nmmm-m-mwm

I i

et of embariment
saing ot i s P ot

PRC barnicr guanding et LLOGmm high nstalied

THC. Roter tosnparain  Bofer 1o soparale settng cut dimedngs for

Tt dotaib.

‘we Beneral Section
"93; 15200 el

Hewhard scascdog o exiend
crckosare For ncw weathesstatkes Now ot
Eomposke with fencing and scsess gates Weh al
Iy P s i o wosther
st

r.--h-u oo totained at peimeter o o

@ new smbankemeats.

eet o e modPiert o
e Sanditg b st oul. e

,.:m,m

PrCE et Licomin hgh ireraiad

Beyar £ad ety margin Rakogs

sl et oumiatiom ol n e with
details

by zmne to prvimetes oF ncw inding pad
il a5 s CHAT recammessations. Safrty mangin
10 contain 2l aming lgtieg and surlars wats1

Graisage v parrater uf ymding e

Aot Iocation of rew
bt wiid ok ad ke
e —

e 141336 guchings et s
tre )

W onciots LIAdIng B30 o2t Sk I c Wit

muu‘mmn fitishort 4 bruut Cantetn

sl AL with wealba rslslant pest
Iﬂaﬁ!-ﬂhal\_mr\w ertified vl

cuat

g thiting mwedmm
mtme
w«vqw-«nummm

? s,

Mo peure s g 2 pedte thy
iking serangrement and opeings, Separate
Gl ot st and ol aecess

e [Bmne and yested Lo aveid deteis.
dwrwash} ehissn scress
o deructural Engineers petalls

it tarmacasas (Srae and esied 10wk
bt being b o by el o
urtace 5 el amed £0 3 the e Bt

e e b A EAARE NS

macke g

e tanding ped s ing aut

S ket et e achiss saving out
of

Exising

o featharsd inta the hew STEINREMENT:

1) Praposed Site - Option 3
Cr

B L. Lo Bankrent (Bmed fiam
bt Roinforcei Sod 000 a1 3T et out
ot o he ncing pod and feathee

seHing put deemings for furthe dotaik.

Eulsting slope o be retsined st periescher of stz
and tratired inta the niw biRankeents L

\\ Aprimminate e dag b wised dons wash

Low levelred obistruction lghting 3 necessary o

chitsuctions 4 etd wehis CAAL it i

Mo sevianbmant Mo 10 3CHEN TN 941

of e landig e e iy CAAE

recoremendatiom £
 Colbach Retaforses 5ol lope o similar sct o

300 Safiey 300 1 peelmacens of nowe linciog g

1 05 e EAAT e st Salety g

S0 0t drwieigs P b decsl,

it s iy, shogemg ke, Tnoe catent and
THE, Beer to separoie

g s itz o o it

CaAT Aot conerasn

s veeding femughout.

e g Hew

a gt
compiete with il markicgs. deifed wihin
ikt recarmendaiions

Genera Notes
1 aind chack dwel

2 Mmmawuuwﬂurwoﬁmmmamm
mhuﬂmwnmnwm

3. Al prints, perty of TACH
Architects Lt

4.a rat scale off drawings

5

drawings,

talied 0 conersts toundas ans all o bas wih,
Struasural ongivancs it

BOUMDARY (SA2EN]]

Lot wl v bl actin ighting s ewhc N
Hwm obAUNCIKETS 35 noted wikhin CAA 1epurt and
LgMRIng posisansa at

et vl 1 s o Lhs abstruation

Provige anel imslall ab ko kvl flood ighting in
mccoreane with CAM report 12"
o

ghting o necessary o

|/ AP 1264 uidiens. Lghting pesitonnd 3t masimum 3
£ senires and at soch e o1 he chructian

Mew hard staning ta estern o providk

— onceauirn for e fre Cghting aipmet anst
ondesare.

R propuiaeary cancpy circa S a data be.
e a alla i vohis L B ar ke
i b bk e
chareing puinl and caise ek
|nm|-a—‘-tnd|_m-vuhm
mod. Canopy I b fiwnd b concets pack in
ine wath Strustural Cogimenm ate. Canapp e
e chear e L Al 3 bUAES L8

e o bl

PRC tvvie g sl 1100w high it
beyons the tanding pic safity margin. Ealigs

AT inerated 1o voncstn Fanatiess 3 1158 wiEh

o

approdimate focation of rew
-mmmﬂ sockand Corie)

-ncmnmmmmn e
free s

el L secate: selng ok o amings
further .

A eatemal ground leves o be modFiat o
acrcemats oo Tandiog, i S6eg o3 Hiw

s g oot slfeced aren, Xew
rame rmeding himighout.

e’ e e

Sttt st Baginess’ s

Exivling slnoe o e vebsinedt sl perinetes of ste
T and featrered into the pew embankaments

Pl wmsanbresn, T o st 2
of e lynding o n e with CAAT
recomeedations Crbsrkme fevmed fm
bl Riinbarcied 5l Sha o siilas v st
o b s the farding pad wr Sratbar
I e cxiing Hlopig e, Frie catest ani
Pt o SmEARKCRT TBC. Refey 12 tepoian
ST T g o 1L LRI,

il atermat roursd evels 1 e musifed to
mimodate

K to 3l ABSHERR SIS 18parls o ity
to cuining trees ond ietainad hedgroms.
Appravimsn ing o tree ok proieciinn sone
ek

Mo concrete landing pat 565 Dot 1 e withy
maMunmnumww
el imies whh wesher resilant 5
mmmunumammmm
CAAT rmeommestations

SmSitery tons 10 peimenss o nas laecing pad
"
aralnage to perimatar of aning pad

e eossnirimnt fommad e aceve witig ot
of i aoeing o n e it EAAT

st ot drawings fo Fustes i

Fepore e urther desats and reqairements,

Reference s dranmn b Mikiary Operations. The:
prapacat S beon hausd o Chil Aiceat ok
Confimmaticn required priar 1o commancamant
hat nc EahascemEnts Bne rened o these

M—-hhhﬂ—nhtbhﬂd
auditicnst parking ares for S3TA Akcral 23

mmmﬁb

mmmm-mm

‘that na additioeal had

parking mlﬂwlﬁl I!IQII”.

v (0 8 Arhanculturalat eopose e works

o ERIRG trves are et g,

- Auprosirate liow o7 v oot prof o con
diifed.

s b T o1 i g

of ez laneting gl i (e wilh CAKL

recommendations. Lebankment tormed from
Rapiliid S8 Sepe e simar ot st

aradient of embankineas TEC. Actey 1o soparate
etting vt drvwings ot Turther dotads.

mxmlﬁhm‘mﬂmmll it
‘an Teat e s the rews winbarkerreets

3o Satety 200 €0 periEnnY o e pad
. e CAAT rosammtratitions. 4ty angin
19 continall rwdng fghsing ond surfoce water
Hrainage co porimeses of anding pad

uenling vt J100mm high istated

EmnkEment of sppe

e surtace wates chanee] o et of
g, 0 G chargs it st fremcty
Grainz / coak pwaps 3 o Structural Engnesrs
s .

Enginees datals

Laning shoo o e retainnd al periieter of ste
and femhered it the now ssbankemerts

Wt st e 8
ol e aniig 04 e
renannsn. bt e
Ebuet Retntarcend bl Sland o sy et ook
i micsh arauoc the eecing pad ar eathor

fathar darat,
Revisions
fev  Dae Besciiptn By Chack
W AGORFE Sately sane wihied MR GM
3 2awspon sR G
. Genaral Section - Callout 1
e Concuirants
v
GG | awrid techyd Brtysaal
Crmnl | Betsi Cadwatads
‘N S University Health Board
Tt ew tAm g PRG miings o provids adge peatsctan to [ e
b s ol Helipad YG
Orawing Tak
; Praposed Site
_l e v of New 2 4m high PPC weld h ity Tealn e Trawn By Cheltnd Ty
Fancireg with lockable access - where needad, All 2
mmm‘:‘mammmms umuﬁ“h Asindicated@Al 09/26/22 CB GM  Wrexham
mﬁ&:ﬂﬂ Ensure that 4/l ﬂﬁgmﬂ:mﬂlﬂ 35 Nkt 7 =
T e LR bR 22004-02 HPYG TACP-PS-77-DR-A-110 B
TACP Architects Lid
I Pembroke House
ﬁpmmﬂzmmmw Pefortoai | Pl B
Wrestiam, L2 YT
o197 291161
ey to b& piarked Acroas Al and
nsinkained unki fudy es blished wdrmin@tacparchitcers.co.uk
Wi tacparchitectsco.uk
At e e s sl Gt s i Bibimb Bv







Agenda Iltem 6.3

PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 3
Application C22/1169/15/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 28/02/2021

Application Full
Type:

Community: Llanberis
Ward: Llanberis

Proposal:

Demolition of former library and construction of three new
intermediate affordable dwellings.

L ocation: Cyngor Gwynedd, Llanberis Library, Ffordd Capel Coch,
Llanberis, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 4SH

Summary of the

Recommendation: TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 66



https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=42543
https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=42543

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

2.2

Description:

This is a full application for the demolition of the former Llanberis library and the construction of
three new 'intermediate' affordable dwellings in its place. The library closed in 2017 and the site
has been dormant since then. It is now proposed to provide three new homes, namely two semi-
detached 2-bedroom dwellings, and one detached 3-bedroom dwelling. The site is located within
the Llanberis Local Service Centre as defined by the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local
Development Plan. It is served by an unclassified public road, Ffordd Capel Coch, which also
serves Ysgol Gynradd Dolbadarn, which has a vehicular access approximately 30m west of the
site of this application. There is also a footbridge over afon Coch river at the rear of the site that
links to Glanrafon Estate. Over the last few years flood mitigation work to the riverbanks has
been completed in this area as a result of significant flooding in 2012.

The dwellings would be 9.3m high to the roof ridge that would be formed of natural slate and the
external walls finished with a mix of white render, slate cladding and timber cladding. The semi-
detached dwellings would have an internal floor area of 86.9m? and the detached dwelling would
have a floor area of 99.1m2. The houses have been designed to be flexible with the potential to
easily adapt them in the future.

This is a development by Cyngor Gwynedd as part of the "T§ Gwynedd' plan and the houses will
be offered to buy or rent for an affordable price to local people. The sale will be based on our
shared equity model with a percentage of the purchase funded through the resident's savings and a
mortgage, and a loan from the Council of the remaining percentage against the property. The
houses can also be rented with an appropriate discount on the monthly rent.

The site lies within the Dinorwig Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest and is outside but
abuts the C2 Flood Zone as defined by TAN 15 'Development and Flood Risk' while the Flood
Map for Planning, that corresponds with the new draft TAN 15, states that the site is within zones
2 and 3 that are at risk of future fluvial flooding.

The following information was submitted in support of the application:

Flood Risk Assessment

Open market evaluation of the houses

Design Statement

Affordable housing and housing mix statement
Initial Ecological Assessment

This application was submitted to the Committee at the last meeting on 17/07/23 when the
discussion was postponed in order to conduct a site inspection visit.

Relevant Policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be made in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

Under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 the Council has a duty not only to
carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable steps in exercising its functions to
meet its sustainable development (or well-being) objectives. This report has been prepared in
consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development principle', as set out in the
2015 Act, and in making the recommendation the Council has sought to ensure that the needs of
the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own
needs. It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the
achievement of well-being objectives aslg 5}&1& cét?e proposed recommendation.




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

2.3 Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan. (July 2017)
PCYFF 1: DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARIES

PCYFF 2: DEVELOPMENT CRITERIA

PCYFF 3: DESIGN AND PLACE SHAPING

PCYFF 4: DESIGN AND LANDSCAPING

TAIl 2: HOUSING IN LOCAL SERVICE CENTRES

TAI 8: APPROPRIATE HOUSING MIX

TAI 15: AFFORDABLE HOUSING THRESHOLD AND DISTRIBUTION
TRA 2: PARKING STANDARDS

TRA 4: MANAGING TRANSPORT IMPACTS

PS 1: THE WELSH LANGUAGE AND CULTURE

PS 5: SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

PS 6: ALLEVIATING AND ADAPTING TO THE EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE

PS 19: CONSERVING AND WHERE APPROPRIATE ENHANCING THE NATURAL

ENVIRONMENT

AT 1: CONSERVATION AREAS, WORLD HERITAGE SITES AND LANDSCAPES, PARKS AND

REGISTERED HISTORIC GARDENS
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: AFFORDABLE HOUSING

2.4 National Policies:

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11 - February 2021)
Technical Advice Note 2: Planning and affordable housing
Technical Advice Note 5: Planning and nature conservation
Technical Advice Note 12: Design

Technical Advice Note 15: Development and flood risk

3. Relevant Planning History:

None

Page 68



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

4, Consultations:

Community/Town Council:

Transportation Unit:

Welsh Water:

Natural Resources Wales:

Biodiversity Unit:

Land Drainage Unit:

Strategic Housing Unit

Public Consultation:

Welcome the principle of developing affordable housing but question
the loss of on-street parking for existing residents

No objection

Require a condition to ensure a drainage plan for foul water disposal
and standard observations for the developers

State concern regarding the application but accept that it may be
acceptable if the mitigating measures in the Initial Ecological
Assessment and Flooding Risk Assessment are implemented.

The recommendations of the Initial Ecological Assessment must be
observed

The Flood Map for Planning (FMfP) notes that the application site is
at risk of flooding and is within Fluvial Flood Zone 2/3 - NRW
proposes observations in such situations.

This plan contributes directly to the aim of Cyngor Gwynedd's
Housing Action Plan to provide more housing to meet the current
high demand that exists in the county.

A notice was posted on the site and the neighbours were consulted.
The advertising period has expired and the following observations
regarding material planning matters were received, namely:

e On-street parking spaces will be lost increasing the parking
issues that already exist in the area

e Concern regarding the safety of pedestrians, particularly
children who attend the nearby school.

e Concern about flooding risk on the site
e The development would be damaging to wildlife

e Concern regarding the harm to the privacy of nearby
premises

e This is an over-development of the site

Page 69




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

51

52

53

54

55

e The development would lead to the shadowing of other
property

e A risk would derive from building transport using the narrow
road

In addition, observations were received which are not material
planning matters for this application:

e A call for alternative plans including developing fewer
houses on the site, creating a car park for residents (with
electric car charging points) or create a children's play area

e That properties used as holiday accommodation exacerbate
local parking issues

e Another site should be sought to construct housing
e Concern regarding a reduction in the value of local housing

e Inconsistency should the development of this plot be
approved while houses were refused in other places

Assessment of the material planning considerations:
The principle of the development

It is a requirement that planning applications be determined in accordance with the adopted
development plan unless other material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Anglesey
and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (LDP) is the adopted 'Development Plan' in this
case. The application site is located within the development boundary of the Local Service Centre
of Llanberis as defined in the LDP.

In accordance with Policy PCYFF 1 (‘Development Boundaries'), proposals will be approved
within development boundaries in accordance with the other policies and proposals in the Plan,
national planning policies and other material planning considerations. Llanberis has been
identified as a Local Service Centre under policy TAl 2. This policy supports housing
developments to meet the Plan's strategy, through housing designations and suitable windfall sites
located within the development boundary, based upon the indicative provision contained in the
Policy.

The indicative housing provision for Llanberis over the Plan period is 65 units and during the
period between 2011 and 2022, 20 units have been completed in the village. The land bank, i.e.
sites with extant planning permission, in April 2022, was 8 units. Taking into consideration the
above information, it means there is adequate capacity within the indicative supply for Llanberis
to cope with the development in question.

In the above context, it is believed that the principle of constructing three houses on this site is
acceptable in principle. In terms of policy, it is not essential for the three properties to be
affordable, although a contribution would be expected towards the local affordable provision as
part of the development. However, this is part of a broader plan to provide affordable housing for
local people and the Strategic Housing Unit confirms that the proposal would assist them to meet
the requirements of the local community for affordable housing. Therefore, it is deemed that the
proposal is consistent with the objectives of policies TAI 2, TAI 8 and TAI 15 in the LDP.

Location, Design and Visual Impact

Generally, policies PCYFF 2 and PCYFF 3 of the Joint Local Development Plan support
proposals for new developments provided they do not have a detrimental impact on the health,

Page 70




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.6

5.7

5.8

59

5.10

511

512

safety or the amenities of the residents of local properties or on the area in general. In addition,
developments are required to:

¢ Contribute to, and enhance, the character and appearance of the site
o Respect the site and its surroundings in terms of its position in the local landscape.
e Use appropriate materials

In considering the urban context of the site and the fact that it is a previously developed site, it is
deemed that the layout, design and materials of the proposed development will be in-keeping with
the location in an appropriate way. It is considered that the houses have been designed to a
standard quality that reflects the local streetscape and it is not believed that the houses would
create significant harm to the built quality of the site or the local neighbourhood and consequently
is considered that the development is acceptable under the requirements of policies PCYFF 2 and
PCYFF 3 of the LDP as they relate to these matters.

For the same reason, it is not considered that there would be any harm to protected landscape
deriving from the development and therefore the application is acceptable under policy AT 1 as it
protects the Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest.

General and residential amenities

Because of the location, design, orientation, and size of the proposed houses, it is not believed
that there would be any significant detrimental impact on private amenities deriving from the
development. While accepting that the surrounding houses currently back onto the library site,
this is an infill site within the development boundary, and it is not considered unreasonable for it
to be developed for housing. It appears that the layout of the proposed houses has been designed
to avoid direct overlooking and while it is inevitable to have some inter-visibility between
gardens, it is not believed that this would be unreasonable or unexpected in such a location,
especially when considering the site's previous public use.

In addition, in recognising that the houses would be within 12m of the backs of Rhes Minafon
and that it is likely that there would be some shadowing of the back of those houses and their
gardens, due to the size of the new houses and the surrounding space, it is not believed that the
shadowing would cause significant harm to the amenities of the residents of Rhes Minafon.

In considering the above discussion, it is deemed that the development is acceptable under
Policies PCYFF 2 and PCYFF 3 of the LDP in terms of private amenities.

Transport and access matters

Several objections were received to the plan as parking issues already exist on Ffordd Capel Coch
that cause a great deal of ill-feeling amongst residents and there is concern that the construction of
three houses at this location would exacerbate the situation. In addition, there was concern
regarding the hazard to street users, including children who attended the nearby school, due to the
increase in traffic.

Despite the above, the Transportation Unit had no objection to the proposal in principle although
they have noted that they would not support creating on street parking spaces. Looking at the
plans, it is noted that there is a private parking space for each new property and space would
remain for three cars on the road in front of the development. It should also be borne in mind that
until recently the site was a public library and attracted traffic. Given that the parking provision
on the site for the three dwellings is acceptable, and that there will be a loss of approximately
three spaces on the street due to this scheme, it is considered that this development in itself will
not exacerbate the situation of on-street parking compared to what could happen under the site's
current legal planning use. In the same manner, it is considered that the traffic caused by the three
dwellings would not cause a greater risk to street users than the former library.

Page 71




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

Given the above, it is therefore considered that the parking provision and access is acceptable for
the location and the proposal meets the essential requirements in terms of road safety and parking
provision and the plan therefore meets with policies TRA 2 and TRA 4 of the LDP and how they
relate to these matters.

Biodiversity Matters

In response to the statutory consultation process, the Biodiversity Unit stated that they had no
objection to the application, however it would be necessary to comply with the mitigation
measures included within the Initial Ecological Assessment submitted with the application. It is
therefore believed by imposing an appropriate condition that the proposal conforms to the
requirements of Policy PS 20 of the LDP.

Flooding Matters

Policies PS 5 and PS 6 of the LDP refer to the need to alleviate and adapt to the effects of climate
change. In addition, applications must include flood risk mitigation measures where appropriate.
As has already been mentioned, the site is outside any flood risk zone noted in the Development
Advice Maps of the current TAN 15 (it lies within Zone A). Normally, applications within zone
A do not require a Flood Consequence Assessment due to the low risk of flooding. However, an
additional material consideration for current planning applications is draft document TAN 15:
Development, Flooding and Coastal Developments (December 2021). The Flood Map for
Planning, that corresponds with this document is more current than the TAN 15 maps and they
demonstrate that this site falls within Zone 2 and 3 for fluvial flooding risk. This means that the
site is expected to be under threat of flooding in the future:

e Zone 2 - probability of <1% (1 in 100 years event) but greater than 0.1% (1 in 1,000 years
event) or equal to the flooding of any year, including a consideration of climate change
over 100 years.

e Zone 3 - probability of 1% (1 in 100 years event) or more of flooding in any year, including
a consideration of climate change over 100 years.

Libraries are designated as developments at high risk and therefore in this case there will be no
change in the status of the development in terms of its vulnerability as a result of flooding. The
building's footprint would remain more or less the same and it is likely that there would be a
reduction, if anything, in the number of people who will use the site compared with its use as a
library. On the whole, it is not believed that the use of the site for housing would equate to a
significant increase in the site's density of use and therefore there will be no significant additional
change in the flooding risk for those who use the site.

In response to the initial observations of Natural Resources Wales (NRW), a Flood Consequence
Assessment (FCA) was submitted with the application. In order to understand the impact of
Ffordd Capel Coch on the flood path in the area of the development, as part of the work of
preparing the LDP, a new model was drawn-up to correspond with NRW surface water modelling
guidance. This model demonstrated that flooding in a once in a 100 years event would flow down
Ffordd Capel Coch leaving all the development site free from flooding. The flooding model also
demonstrates that the depth of the flooding on Ffordd Capel Coch - the access/exit to the site -
would be greater than 300mm in a once in every 100 years event. As the proposal is to demolish
the existing building and to build three new dwellings with approximately the same footprint,
without changing the site's levels, it is not expected that there will be any impact on the flooding
risk to others deriving from this development.

The findings of the Flood Consequence Assessment and the following modelling process confirm
that the development will be in compliance with the requirements of the current TAN 15,
specifically the criteria set by Appendix 1 of the TAN. In addition, the LPA offers a series of
mitigation measures to improve the resilience of the development from flooding.

Page 72



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.19

5.20

521

In considering the above assessment, it is deemed that the proposal is acceptable on the grounds
of the ability to manage flood risk to the occupants of the proposed houses and that it would not
cause any additional risk in other places. It is therefore considered that this application complies
with the requirements of Policies PS 5 and PS 6 and the content of the current TAN 15:
Development and Flood Risk (2004). Development and Flood Risk (2004).

The Welsh Language

As there is sufficient capacity within the indicative housing supply for Llanberis, in accordance
with criterion b. Policy PS 1, there is no need to submit a Welsh Language Statement with this
application. However, even when there is no need for a Welsh Language Statement the applicant
is encouraged to demonstrate what consideration was given to the Welsh language when drawing
up the planning application. In this case, the Affordability and Housing Mix Statement submitted
with the application confirms that the whole purpose of this plan is to develop intermediate
affordable housing to address the need and increase the opportunities for local residents to be able
to compete in the housing market. Due to the nature of the plan, that was specifically drawn-up to
protect the social make-up of local communities, it is believed that the development is consistent
with the objectives of Policy PS 1.

Other matters

It is important to note when considering this application that the lawful use of the site, such as a
library, falls under Use Class D1 (non-residential establishments) in the Town and Country
Planning Order (Use Classes) 1987 (as amended), which means that planning permission would
not be required to change the building to a use that falls under the same use class for example use
as a health centre, nursery or community hall. Each of these would have implications in terms of
matters such as flood risk, transportation and amenity impacts. Therefore, this should not be
considered as an empty site development, rather it should be borne in mind what may happen
under the site's current legal rights and would the development in question have impacts that
would be significantly worse than the potential legal use.

Conclusions:

Bearing in mind the above assessment, particularly in the context of the specialist information
submitted regarding flooding risk, it is accepted that this development will not exacerbate the
situation in terms of material planning matters compared with what may happen under the site's
present legal planning use. Indeed, it may offer an opportunity to improve the resilience of the
site to flooding risk and introduce improvements in terms of matters such as visual amenities and
biodiversity. Ultimately, this is a proposal to create affordable housing for local people on a
brownfield site within the development boundary and it is deemed that the plan is acceptable on
the grounds of principle and that it complies with relevant local and national planning policies
regarding all the relevant material planning matters.

Recommendation:

To approve — conditions:

The development shall be commenced within five years
Development to comply with the approved plans

Condition to ensure that the houses remain permanently affordable
Slate roof

The recommendations of the Initial Ecological Assessment must be observed

Page 73




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

The recommendations of the Flooding Risk Assessment must be observed
Welsh Water Condition

A Welsh name must be given to the development

Note: Welsh Water

Sustainable Drainage

Page 74




G) abed

q
%
A<

)
5

q
o
%’6\\ M?nhg‘;n ’JI_v‘Tl

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2022. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

\

= e

]-l» iriapfa
9

[CERBYN]

PRRTED: 271222 12:2434

MEV: DESCRBTION: oaTE By CHE:
BT ARST BSUE Team sn

[ cLENT aopaam: ME S0
B3 PLANNING ISSUE Ay ME SO

Q

0 12.5 25 375 50 m

e ™™

1:1250 @ A4

@ saer archiects

wwwsserwales | 01492472478 | studio@ssecwales

THE DRAWING |3 COPYRIGHT OF SASR ARCHITECTS LIMTED, CHECK AL
DMENSONS 0N SITE. D BCREPANCES TO B MO TIFED TOARCHTECT.
ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE SHOWN Ao MOVCATIVE AND FORG UIDANCE.
FINAL DESIGN TO STRUCTURAL ENGNEERS. 0 ETAILS AND SPECFICATION.

PROJECT:

CAPEL COCHRD,
LLANBERIS

CUENT:

CYNGOR GWYNEDD

DRAWING TITLE

LOCATION PLAN

PURPOSE OF ISSUE STATUS:

PLANNING 53

DRAWING Ma: PROJECT Na
CCR-SAL-A1-ZZ-DR-A-0001 F1159
SCALE REVISION:

1:1250@A4 P3




30/05/23

DERBYN - Cynllunio Cyngor Gwynedd

Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

9/ abed

_owcanon an " _on
P commans sk cunt - o
"o e 0

ECOLOGY REPORT
NEW TREE PLANTING TO INCLUDE AT LEAST TWO
OF THE FOLLOWING:

+ ROWAN

. CHERRY

+ BIRD CHERRY

+ CHERRY PLUM

+ CRABAPPLE

ORNAMENTAL PLANTING TO GARDENS TO

@ saer architects

o s e | 01432472478 | st Dsamr s

PROECT
CAPEL COCH RD,
LLANBERIS

cuenr

CYNGOR GWYNEDD

CRAWING TTLE

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

ORAWING STATUS. STATUS:
PLANNING s3

CRAWINGNo:  PROJECTNo:
CCR-SAL-AT-00-DR-A-0010 P1159

SCALE REvISON:
1:2000A2 P4



Amended Plan

m3m0¢!n9.,5!,,2§..¢ [Cynllun Diwygiedig}

CAPEL COCH RD,
LLANBERIS

CLENT.
CYNGOR GWYNEDD

DRAWING THLE

PROPOSED 3D

PURPOSE OF ISSUE STATUS
PLANNING s3

mmmmmm PROIECT No:

CCR-SAL-A1-ZZ-DR-A-0013 P1159

scae REVISON:

@A3 PS5




g/ abed

BOUNDARY KEY

——— 18m HIGH TIMBER CLOSE BOARD FENCE

900mm HIGH RAILINGS
——— EXISTING STONE WALL

= BXISTING TIMBER POST AND BOARDS

\

A\ [Cynllun DiwygiedigJ

Amended Plan

o i & %

@ saer architects

es | 01492472478 | stdio@saer waies

PROKCT
CAPEL COCH RD,
LLANBERIS

cugnT.
CYNGOR GWYNEDD

ORAWING TITLE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SITE - BOUNDARY PLAN
SCALE: 1:200

CRAWING STATUS: STATUS.
PLANNING s3

ORAWINGNo:  PROJECT No
CCR-SAL-A1-ZZ-DR-A-0011 P1159

SCALE REVISON
1:2000A2 3




Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

— 30/05/23

DERBYN -Cynilunio Cyngor Gaynedd

g-? PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION
('8 SCALE: 1:100
\l

@ saer architects

PROIECT:

CAPEL COCHRD,
LLANBERIS

CLEnT:

CYNGOR GWYNEDD

DRAWING TITLE:

PROPOSED BLOCK
ELEVATIONS

PURPOSE CF ISSUE sTATUS:
PLANNING 53

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION e

CCR-SAL-A1-ZZ-DR-A-0012 P1159
SCALE: 1:100 [ P—

1:100@A3 PS5




4P2B - GROUND FLOOR FUTURE WASHROOM
CLOSED PLAN SCALE: 7:700
SCALE: 1:100

4P28B - FIRST FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1:50 i i
Jl) i |
Q ! | I
Q ! o |
@ h ! !
= e xR |
I | | |
- e f oo I 4P2B - GROUND FLOOR 4P2B - FIRST FLOOR 4P2B - SECOND FLOOR !
I Aol I FUTURE LOFT EXPANSION FUTURE LOFT EXPANSION ~ FUTURE LOFT EXPANSION |
‘“'.‘.”2"3 o | | SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 !
= l E— |=_!
—Jj
e l o L bt b
' | - EB il @saer architects
[B CAPELCOCH"I;'I;,
LLANBERIS
4P28B - GROUND FLOOR OPEN PLAN FRONT ELEVATION PLOT 2 REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION PLOT 3 SIDE ELEVATION PLOT 2 CYNGOR/GWYNEDD
SCALE: 1:50 SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 7:100 SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 7:100
T i 4P28 HOUSE PLANS
H m ey
FRONT ELEVATION PLOT 3 e
SCALE: 1:100 o

As indicated®AT P2



5538 STOVE VOLUME 250

T

FUTURE WASHROOM

a

=

5P3B - GROUND FLOOR

CLOSED PLAN
SCALE: 1:700

5P3B - OPTION 2 - FIRST FLOOR

FUTURE EXPANSION
| SCALE: 1:100

1
1
1
1
|
1
|
|
1
1
1
1
|
i
1
1
1
1
1
|
|
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
|
i
1
1
1
1
|
1
1
1
1
i
1

5P3B - FIRST FLOOR
SCALE: *:50

o
Q
(@)
D

FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100

1 s .

@ saer architects

B

e
CAPEL COCH RD,
LLANBERIS

CYNGOR GWYNEDD
5P3B - GROUND FLOOR OPEN PLAN FRONT ELEVATION FUTURE EXPANSION  REAR ELEVATION FUTURE EXPANSION SIDE ELEVATION FUTURE EXPANSION

SCALE 50 SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 -
5P3B HOUSE PLANS

AND ELEVATIONS

" PLANIANG s
CCRSAL-AT-ZZ-DR-A101 P1159
As indicated@AT 2



l

|||||||||!!&&1!||\||ul|

~y.€







Agenda Iltem 6.4

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 4
Application C23/0293/42/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 06/04/2021

Application Full

Type:

Community: Nefyn

Ward: Morfa Nefyn and Tudweiliog

Proposal: Full application for the demolition of existing structures

and construction of a new dwelling and associated works

L ocation: Arosfa, Edern, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 8YU

Summary of the
Recommendation:  TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 84



https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=25155

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

2.1

2.2

Description:

Full application for the demolition of existing structures and construction of a new two-storey
dwelling and associated works. The dwelling would include a hall, lounge, kitchen/dining room,
utility, toilet, office and garage on the ground floor with 4 bedrooms (2 with en-suite) and a
bathroom on the first floor. An external balcony will be included on part of the dwelling's first
floor on the south-eastern elevation, namely the elevation that would look away from any
neighbouring property.

The house would be two-storey with a slate roof while external walls would be a combination of
render, timber and stone cladding. The internal floor area of the proposed house would be
approximately 170m2 across two storeys. The height of the main ridge of the building would be
approximately 5.8m while the height of the rear part of the building would be 4.2m. The proposed
house would be partly located over the footprint of the existing structures, which are a mixture of
zinc sheds and glasshouses with two storage containers also located on the site. It would be
located fairly central within the plot and an extensive turning area and parking space would be
provided. An existing access serves the site from the adjacent highway through the village of
Edern (the B4417).

The site is located within the development boundary and is also within the Western LIyn Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty and the LIyn and Bardsey Landscape of Outstanding Historic
Interest. The nearby area's pattern of residential developments is a mixture of terraced houses,
detached and semi-detached houses and they vary in terms of size and appearance.

The application has been amended twice since it was originally submitted in response to
observations received and following discussions with officers. Originally, an external balcony
was to be included on the first floor of the south-eastern (front) elevation and the south-western
gable end, this has now been reduced so that it is only on the south-eastern elevation. Some of the
first-floor windows were also changed so that they only included opaque glass. Another change
undertaken was reducing the height of the part that would extend out from the main part of the
building at the rear, namely the part that would extend closest to the site boundary with
neighbouring houses to the north. A reduction of 1.6m in height can be seen between the original
proposal and the amended proposal and, as a result, the roof form and internal arrangements are
slightly changed and a dormer window is included. The local member, the community council
and neighbouring residents were re-consulted following the receipt of the amendments.

The application is submitted to the Planning Committee for a decision at the local member’s
request due to concern about the size of the proposed house and its proximity to other houses.

Relevant Policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be made in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the seven well-being goals within the Act.
This report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable
development principle', as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council
has sought to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own nee]gfage 85



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

2.3 Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026, adopted 31 July 2017
PS 1. The Welsh Language and Culture
PS 5: Sustainable development
PCYFF 1: Development boundaries
PCYFF 2: Development criteria
PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping
PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping
TRA 2: Parking standards
TRA 4: Managing transport impacts
PS 17: Settlement strategy
TAI 4: Housing in local, rural and coastal villages
TAI 15: Affordable housing threshold and distribution
AMG 2: Special landscape areas
AMG 5: Local biodiversity conservation

AT 1. Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and
Gardens.

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11 - February 2021)

Technical Advice Note 12: Design

3. Relevant Planning History:

31 Application 3/22/35C - Agricultural contractors' plant shed - approved 01/05/97

4, Consultations:

Community/Town Council: Nefyn Town Council express concern about the height of the design
and neighbours' privacy.

Re-consultation:

Nefyn Town Council express concern about the height of the design
and neighbours' privacy.

Page 86




PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Transportation Unit:

Natural Resources Wales:

Welsh Water:

Public Protection Unit;

Biodiversity Unit:

Land Drainage Unit:

I refer to the above application and wish to state that | do not intend
to submit a recommendation as it is assumed that the proposed
development will not have a detrimental impact on any road, or
proposed road.

We have reviewed the planning application submitted to us, and from
the information provided, we are not of the opinion that the proposed
development impacts any matters listed on our Consultation Topics.

Standard advice and response in relation to drainage matters and
connection to the public systems.

Not received

The sheds are unlikely to be a bat roosting habitat and the large metal
shed is unlikely to be a bird nesting habitat because it appears to be
well sealed. It is recommended that a preliminary ecological
assessment should be submitted and that bat and bird boxes are
shown on amended plans and other biodiversity enhancements.

Standard advice regarding SUDS matters.

Page 87




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and nearby residents were notified.

51

5.2

5.3

The advertisement period has expired, and several
letters/correspondences of objection were received on the following

grounds:
e Overlooking/loss of privacy
e Too large/overbearing height
e Asthe land is higher, the house will be substantially higher
o Detrimental effect on the residential amenities of

neighbours/currently quiet site

Impact on public footpath

Loss of sun/over-shadowing

Negative design impact on the streetscene

Lack of information/plans to fully assess the proposal

As well as the above objections, objections were received that were
not material planning objections and these included:

e Current houses losing value

A petition was also received which had been signed by local residents
with 8 of them objecting to the proposal and one not objecting.

Following the second consultation, observations were received
reiterating the original objections:

e The 'revision B' amended plans do not alleviate our concerns
that the proposed dwelling will not have a substantial impact
on our privacy as a result of overlooking

It is noted that a letter / further correspondence was received from the
agent, withdrawing objections from two neighbours who had
originally submitted objections.

Assessment of the material planning considerations:
The principle of the development

The proposal involves the demolition of existing structures and construction of a new two-storey
dwelling in their place. The site in question has already been developed and, therefore, is
considered as a brownfield site and is located within the development boundary of the village of
Edern. The proposal, therefore, meets the requirements of policies PS 5, PCYFF 1 and PS17 of
the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (LDP).

The village of Edern has been identified as a Coastal/Rural Village in the LDP and, therefore, the
proposal must be considered in accordance with the requirements of policy TAI 4 ("Houses in
Local, Rural and Coastal Villages').

The indicative supply level for Edern over the Plan period is 12 units (including a 10% 'slippage
allowance', which means that the method of calculating the figure has taken into account potential
unforeseen circumstances which could influence the provision of housing, e.g., land ownership
matters, infrastructure restrictions, etc.). During the period 2011 to 2022, a total of 2 units have

Page 88




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

59

5.10

511

been completed in Edern. The windfall land bank, i.e., sites with extant planning permission on
sites not allocated for housing, in April 2022, was 4 units.

Therefore, based on this information, approving a development on this scale would be acceptable
given the indicative supply level for the village and the requirements of policy TAI 4.

Visual amenities

Policies PCYFF 3 and 4 of the Local Development Plan promote good building design by
ensuring that proposals conform to a series of criteria by aiming to safeguard the recognised
features and character of the landscape and the local environment, safeguarding the visual
character by ensuring that building materials are of a high standard and in-keeping with the
character and appearance of the local area and suitably landscapes the site.

Policy PCYFF 3 of the LDP states that all proposals will be expected to demonstrate high quality
design which fully takes into account the natural, historic and built environmental context. It also
emphasises that proposals will only be permitted if they can comply with a series of criteria.
Additionally, Policy PCYFF 4 requires that all proposals integrate into their surroundings and a
landscape scheme should give consideration, amongst other matters, to the natural contours of the
landscape, and demonstrate how the development respects and protects local and strategic views
as well as respect, retain and complement any existing positive natural features.

Having demolished the existing structures, the proposal involves undertaking excavation work to
level the ground although it is believed that the site is relatively level at present. From the plans, it
can be seen that the height of the existing sheds and structures varies between 1.9m and 3.3m.
The plot for development is relatively large in size with land rising gradually from the access
point with the adjacent highway towards the site. The new building would fill more of the plot to
the south/south-east than the existing sheds. An established growth of mature trees and shrubs can
be seen through the site, including along the boundary with existing houses to the
north/west/south-west.

Currently, the site consists of industrial-like sheds that are quite simple in design, which stand
unnoticed within the plot. Residential houses are mostly within the local area and, therefore, the
existing sheds are slightly out of character compared to the mostly residential use locally.
Existing houses reflect similar features to each other with a fairly general pattern to the
levels/height and form of their roofs in terms of the adjacent houses that face the public highway.
Pitched slate roofs is the main type of roof seen in the area. However, there are also more recent
developments within the local area, particularly a two-storey house that abuts the western
boundary of the site which is typical of a house of its time, namely the beginning of the 80s.

It is acknowledged that the proposed house would be larger in size than the existing buildings but
in response to highlighted concerns, the building has been amended from what was originally
submitted. The new house is located within part of the site that is within the development
boundary, and although this means it is closer to the northern boundary of the site than it would
have been should it have been pushed further into the site, it is not considered that its location
within the site is unreasonable.

The roof ridge height of the existing highest shed is 3.3m and the height of the ridge of the
proposed roof would be 5.8m. Obviously, it is accepted that the roof ridge of the proposed
dwelling would be higher than the existing buildings but not to a totally unreasonable scale
considering the variety locally. For example, the height would be slightly lower than the ridge
height of the neighbouring property to the west, but not much, but lower after all. Due to the
amendment made to the height of one part, it is deemed that this is a practical effort to reduce the
impact in terms of its appearance and in the locality. As a result, it is not considered that it would

Page 89




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.12

5.13

514

5.15

5.16

stand out as an incongruous feature in this part of the village and would not be totally contrary to
the general development pattern seen there. It is not considered that the proposed new house will
impact to a totally unacceptable level on the character and appearance of the site or the
surrounding area in terms of appearance, scale, height or mass. The presence of mature trees and
shrubs within the site provides an appropriate cover for the site and, despite the increase in height,
it is not believed that the building would dominate views towards the site from prominent public
points. The presence of existing houses adjacent to the public highway means that there is no
completely open view towards the site from this direction and this, as well as the trees, is likely to
mean that views from the direction of the B4417 would be fragmented.

It must be acknowledged that the applicant has amended the proposal in an attempt to respond to
concerns raised and it is now believed that the proposal would add to and improve the character
and appearance of the site and the area in terms of its appearance. There is no objection to the
type of design proposed in terms of the elevations of the external walls and the form and scale of
the proposed openings.

The explanation of Policy PCYFF 3 states: ‘the setting and design of new developments must be
based on a thorough understanding of the site itself and of its broader background, and seek to
obtain as much benefit as possible from the site's features. This will require careful consideration
of the site layout. No two sites share the same landscapes, contours, relationship with
surrounding buildings, street pattern, and features. The proximity of poor quality or indistinct
development is not a justification for standard or poor design solutions. New development should
integrate into its surrounding whilst seeking to enhance the overall character of the locality'.
There is no doubt that the change would be local compared to what currently exists and what is
proposed, however, consideration needs to be given if the change would be to a totally
unacceptable extent especially so bearing in mind its relationship within the locality. It would not
dominate or look incongruous due to the existence of the existing houses and would convey the
local roof form pattern. Therefore, bearing in mind that the existing proposal has been amended
to create a building of a different size and form and smaller than what was previously considered,
it is now considered that the proposal is acceptable and complies with the requirements of criteria
1 and 2 of policy PCYFF 3 and points 3 and 4 of Policy PCYFF 4 of the LDP.

The site and the wider area are within the Western Llyn Special Landscape Area. Policy PS19 of
the LDP requires the protection or where appropriate, enhancement of the natural environment,
countryside and coast of the Plan's special area. Criterion 2 states that sites of international,
national, regional and local importance should be protected and, where appropriate, their settings
enhanced, in line with National Policy. Furthermore, Policy AMG 2 requires proposals within
Special Landscape Areas to give appropriate consideration to the scale and nature of the
development. Although it is accepted that there would be some impact locally, it is not believed
that the proposal would be unacceptable on the grounds of the impact on the wider landscape and
this is mainly based on its location in the centre of the existing built form. The proposal is
therefore considered acceptable in terms of Policies PS 19 and AMG 2 of the LDP.

The site also lies within the L1yn and Bardsey Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest. The
proposal involves the construction of a new house, and it is considered that it would not have a
wider impact on the historic landscape. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable
in terms of Policy AT 1 of the LDP.

General and residential amenities

The site is surrounded to the south-west, north and the north-west by dwellings with open lands
extending past the southern/south-eastern boundary of the site. Elements of overlooking already
exist due to the location of the existing buildings. There are trees/shrubs within the garden and
nearby gardens reduce some of the impact. Concerns were highlighted by neighbours during the
public consultation period regarding the impact of the proposal on them and it would have a

Page 90




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

521

substantially harmful impact compared with the existing situation. It is considered that a real
effort has been made to reduce the impact of what was originally submitted and it can be seen
that the amendments respond to the concerns highlighted by planning officers. It is believed that
the reduced height in one part of the building, contributes to the improvement and that the other
changes, namely reducing the external balcony and changing some windows, improve the
proposal in terms of the impact on neighbours.

It is believed that consideration must be given to the historical use of the site and the extant
permission to sustain a business here. It can be seen that permission was granted in the past for
the sheds for a purpose relating to agricultural contractors. This would mean maintaining and
operating machinery such as tractors and all associated activities. It is believed that residential use
of the site in comparison, would be much less damaging and, therefore, there would be an
improvement from the extant permission to sustain a business and the proposed use.

In terms of acceptable separation distances between the proposed house and existing houses, an
assessment of the effects often depends on the specific circumstances of the site as well as
distances. Concerns were highlighted during the consultation period regarding distances matters
as well as shading/loss of light in relation to neighbouring houses. The balcony has now been
reduced so that it is only on the front elevation looking towards the south-eastern direction and
away from neighbouring houses. Also, a 1.7m high permanent privacy screen will be installed on
the sides of the balcony, which is standard for this type of feature. In terms of the changes
undertaken to some windows of the new house, they would be for rooms such as the bathroom
and dressing room. They will be of a type where only the highest part is possible to open and
where they cannot be opened fully. It is intended to include a condition to ensure that only this
type of window is approved in specific locations. It must also be borne in mind that dense shrubs
and high trees are on the boundaries. It can be seen that distances between the nearest part of the
new house and the rear of the nearest existing houses vary between 15m and 24m. It is believed
that there would be approximately 3m between the nearest part of the new house (gable end with
no window) and the garden boundaries of the nearest houses and approximately 8m between the
nearest part which include windows. Although there is some difference in land levels between the
existing houses and the application site, it is not believed that the location of the new house, the
distances between sites and the presence of mature trees and shrubs, will mean that the impact
will be totally unacceptable. Therefore, as a result, it is not considered that any shadowing
resulting from the proposal would be totally harmful.

This proposal and the consideration given to room locations, including opague glass when
required and changing to the height and form of the 'extension' towards the northern boundary
reduces the impact of the development from the original proposal by reducing the impact of
overlooking and the perception of overlooking over nearby houses. It is believed that it would be
reasonable in this case to include conditions to ensure protection in this situation and although it
would not mean that any further development would fail, it ensures that there is control over new
developments so that the impact on amenities would not be affected to a totally unacceptable
level. Therefore, conditions are attached that demand the use of opaque glass and windows with
only high openings on the side and back of the first floor while the conditions to limit the
developments permitted such as extending the building, erecting buildings within the curtilage
and include any new windows are also to be attached.

It is believed that the development in its amended form is now acceptable in terms of its impact
on the amenities of nearby residents and the proposal would not cause significant unacceptable
harm to the living conditions of nearby houses. It is therefore believed that it is acceptable based
on the relevant requirements of policy PCYFF 2 of the Joint Local Development Plan that seeks
to protect the amenities of local residential occupiers.

Therefore, considering the above, it is deemed that a full assessment has been given to the
proposal that finds that the proposal in question will not have a significant detrimental impact to a

Page 91




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

5.27

totally unacceptable degree on the amenities of local property occupiers and it is therefore
acceptable in terms of the requirements of the criteria of policy PCYFF 2 of the LDP.

Linguistic matters

In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, it is a duty when making a decision on a
planning application to consider the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that application. This
is reiterated further in para. 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 2021), and Technical
Advice Note 20. The Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 'Maintaining and Creating
Distinctive and Sustainable Communities' (adopted July 2019), provides further guidance on how
it is expected for Welsh language considerations to be incorporated in each relevant development.

It is noted that there are some specific types of developments where it will be required for the
proposal to submit a Welsh Language Statement or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment. The
thresholds in terms of when it is expected to submit a Statement/Report have been highlighted in
Policy PS1 of the Joint LDP, along with Diagram 5 of the SPG. In terms of the type of
developments in question, the following is noted: The proposal does not reach the thresholds to
submit a Welsh Language Statement or a Report on a Welsh Language Impact Assessment.
However, Appendix 5 of the SPG notes that every housing development, retail, commercial or
industrial development where there is no need to submit a Welsh Language Impact
Statement/Assessment should show how consideration has been given to the language.

The proposal before you is for the construction of one dwelling. Although it does not reach the
relevant threshold, a Welsh language statement was requested from the agent, which had not been
received at the time of writing this report (but it is trusted that it will be received in due course,
and it will be reported upon via the late information form). However, it is noted that the applicant
is local and a Welsh first language speaker. Therefore, from this perspective, it is considered that
there would be a positive impact on the language by ensuring a house for a local Welsh speaker
which means that they will continue to reside in the village and, therefore, it is considered that the
proposal complies with the requirements of policy PS1 in this regard.

Transport and access matters

The proposal entails using the existing access and include a parking and turning space within the
curtilage. The observations of the Transportation Unit were received and they had no objection
with regard to road safety. It is therefore considered as a result of the comments of the
Transportation Unit, that the proposal is acceptable in terms of road safety and is in accordance
with the relevant requirements of policies TRA 2 and TRA 4 of the LDP.

Biodiversity matters

It can be seen from the observations of the Biodiversity Unit that the existing buildings
earmarked for demolition are not suitable for use by protected species. Therefore, in this case, it
is believed that it would be reasonable to impose a standard condition to agree on Biodiversity
enhancement details for the site. This may be in the form of bird or bat boxes in the new building
or nearby or that the choice of landscaping is suitable for the prosperity of local wildlife. As it is
possible to ensure that local Biodiversity is enhanced, it is therefore considered that this ensures
that the relevant requirements of policy AMG 5 are satisfied.

Community benefit / 106 agreement issues

The requirements of policy TAI 15 note that an appropriate level of affordable housing must be
ensured in the Plan's area. Depending on the scale of developments, a contribution towards

Page 92




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 11/09/2023

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.28

5.29

7.1

affordable housing provision is expected in accordance with the threshold recognised for the
county's settlements. In the case of the village of Edern, which has been identified as a
rural/coastal/local village, the threshold is 2 or more units. As this proposal is for the provision of
one new house only, it does not meet this threshold to consider affordable provision.

Response to the public consultation

It is acknowledged that several objections have been received to this proposal and it is considered
that all relevant planning matters have been given appropriate consideration as part of the above
assessment. A decision is made based on a full consideration of all the material planning
considerations including the relevant observations received during the public consultation and
that no one was let down when considering this application.

Any other relevant matters

Despite the allegation made that the proposal would affect the existing public footpath, by
examining the current maps it cannot be seen that a registered public footpath crosses the
application site at all. The nearest public footpath is located far beyond the site boundaries to the
south, south-west and south-east.

Conclusions:

Having considered the above and all the relevant planning matters including the local and
national policies and guidance, as well as all the observations and objections received, it is
believed that the proposal is acceptable and satisfies the requirements of the relevant policies as
noted above.

Recommendation:

To delegate powers to the Senior Planning Manager to approve the application.
Conditions

Time

In accordance with the plans

Agree on materials, including roof slates

Restrict permitted development rights and windows

Manage the type of window/glass installed

Landscaping

Biodiversity Enhancements

Building control plan

Page 93




Tyn Coed

Clydfan

b
O
\

Rhosgor
%%244r A Mynydd =

Awel

.Iann gweladadd 2.4x70m

Llygad Yr Haul

Amlinell y strwythurau presennol i'w dymchwel.

Schiehallion

@ Safle Arfaethedig

1:500

Lleoliad

2

1:1250

Haydn E.
Williams Cyf.

Syrfewyr Adeiladu Siartredig
Chartered Building Surveyors
Gellidara, Penrhos, Pwilheli, Gwynedd, LIS3 THF
01758) 614444 "~y
infof@haydnewilliams.com (@ RICS

www._hay dnewilliams.com

NODIADAL - NOTES

Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 14082023

Do not scale tis drawing. Contractons must check all dimensions from
site. This drawing is copyright

No. Description Date
A Lleihau balcony, gwydr  |19/05/23
afloywl
B Cuwrtil 13/6/23

TEITL PROSIECT - PROJECT TITLE

Tir ger Arosfa, Edem

TEML - TITLE

Lleoliad Safle
SRR i Williams
m‘:’:{“‘;‘;w | w:’l‘*m B 2810421

GRADDFA - SCALE ( @A2 ) | RHIF PROSIECT - PROJECT NUMBER
indicated

RHIF CYNLLUN - DRAWING NUMBER REV

0325-8101 B

13/06/2023 09:31:09



96 abed

& yn _I‘_I‘ un [o)

+

Site Survey
( )_1 7200

Haydn E.
Williams Cyf

Syrfewyr Adeiladu Siartredig
Chartered Building Surveyors

o, b Pkt S 53 T8
i e

wnmm (Prcs

To S

Rev| Description Date

TN CHICT PRLn T

Tir ger Arosfa, Edern

wn .

Site Survey

Huw Williams
e |

e L L |
1:200 328

0325-T101 |

TADGADY 12374



Greenhouse

Shed

Greenhouse

Shed

Container

Container

Haydn E.
Williams Cyf.

Syrfewyr Adeiladu Siartredig
Chartered Building Surveyors
Gellidara, Penrhos, Pwilheli, Gwynedd, LIS3 THF
(01758) 614444
hay

NODIADAL - NOTES

Da not scale this drawing. Contractors must check ail dimensions fram
site. This drawing is copyright

No. Description Date

: =
\\\\\\\\

(A

LR A

North

TEITL PROSIECT - PROJECT TITLE

Tir ger Arosfa, Edem

TETL-TITLE

Existing Structures
CreEnT-C Huw Williams
f g;w g“‘ﬁ";;]'n:’nl‘ﬂ-:w e 06104/23

3 1:100

GRADDFA- SCALE ( @A2) | RHIF PROSIECT - PROJECT NUMBER
1:100

RHIF CYNLLUN - DRAWING NUMBER REV

0325-B101

06/04/2023 15:09:45



Cynllun Diwygiedig ‘I-I:??;(-:In E'c ¢
Amended Plan SyrfewvrAdeIiladlufiartrTlig V .

. Chartered Building Surveyors
Cynllunio quChartered uiding Suveyors
(D1758) 614444 -
inf anewilliams. 3
Derbyn - 10/07/2023 mﬂﬁ‘:'l:y,“m"::::m‘W (@ Rm

NODIADAU - NOTES

86 abed

Do not scale this drawing. Contraciors must check all dimensions from:

site. This drawing is copyright

. No. Description Date

A Lleihau balcony, gwydr | 19/05/23
afloyw

B Gostwng uchder to dros | 10/7/23
y modurdy

—
‘ ‘ ‘ H ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ TEML PROSIECT - PROJECT TITLE
. .

Llawr Gwaelod o Llawr Cyntaf Tir ger Arosfa, Edem

1 1 g 100 @/ 1 . 100 TEML - TITLE
Cynllun Llawr Arfaethedig

CLEIENT - CLIENT

Huw Williams
AL G D G ovoouo
DNy Gew | CECSavhgy | BT a2
GRADDFA- SCALE ( @A2) | RHIF PROSIECT - PROJECT NUMBER
1:100 0325
RHIF CYNLLUN - DRAWING NUMBER REV
0325-A101 B

10/07/2023 15:27:51




Cynllunio

Amended Plan

Cynilun Diwygiadig}

Farel anlar—|

W@J

T"

‘Ar Source Heat Fumg® =

Qchr (De-Orllewin)

7

2

1A

=
|

1 [

=To llechi a phanel solr
redi

Integredig

- Walau rendr gwyn a chyfuniad o
giadin coed a chemig naturiol.

|

2

1:100

AT T, FTIER T R,

Haydn E.
Williams Cyf.

syrfewyr Adeiladu Slartredlg

Charl eed udns urveyors
Gallldars, Panh Gwepmadd, LIES THF

s (Gmics

RODIARAL - NOTES

D it acale fin crveeng. Contrmcion s check all dmensicns fom
. Thim srwaing e copright

Mo. Description Date
A Lieihau balcony, gwydr | 18/05723
afloyw
B (Gostwng uchder to dros  |10/723
ly modurdy
TETL PROGIECT - PROECT TITLE

Tir ger Arosfa, Edern

Ochr (Gogledd-Ddwyrain)

3 1:100

4

Cefn (Gogledd-Orllewin)

1:100

TETL - TiFLE

Edrychiadau Arfaethedig

CLEIENT - CLIERT

Huw Willams
e e e
e [ |2 e

GREODFA - SCALE | @AZ ) | WAF FROSILCT - PROECT NUMBER
1:100, s

EHIF CYRLLUK - RARING MUMBER

0325-A102

REV

B

1002023 15:28:56



@

¥ " Dol-Erw & Hafod
/ ol-Erw al

Williams Cyf.

Syrfewyr Adeiladu Siartredig
Chartered Building Surveyors
Gellidara, Penrhos, Pwiihell, Gwynedd, LIS3 THF
(01758) 614444

info@haydnewilliams.com (@ RICS

www.haydnewlliams.com

NODIADAU - NOTES

Do not scale this drawing. Conractors must check all dimensions from
site. This drawing is copyright

No. Description Date
A Lleihau balcony, gwydr | 19/05/23
afloywl
B Gostwng uchder to dros  |10/7/23
y modurdy

TEITL PROSIECT - PROJECT TITLE

Tir ger Arosfa, Edem

TEML-TITLE

Croesdoriad Safle

CLEIENT - CUENT

Huw Williams
DA D AN a0 o ovoouo
DRANEY GEW CHEKEDEYHEW |DATE 29/0421

GRADDFA - SCALE (@A2) | RHIF PROSIECT - PROJECT NUMBER
1:200 0325

RHIF CYNLLUN - DRAWING NUMBER

0325-8102

REV

B

17/08/2023 16:02:16









s

|

T

i

3
I







	Agenda
	4. MINUTES
	5. APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER UNDER THE ROAD TRAFFIC ACT 1984
	6.1 Application No C21/1220/42/LL Morlais Lôn Penrallt, Nefyn, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 6EP
	Plans
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14


	6.2 Application No C23/0432/11/LL Helipad, Ysbyty Gwynedd, Penrhosgarnedd, Bangor, LL57 2PW
	Plans

	6.3 Application No C22/1169/15/LL Llanberis Library, Ffordd Capel Coch, Llanberis, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 4SH
	Plans
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9


	6.4 Application No C23/0293/42/LL Arosfa, Edern, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 8YU
	Plans
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10



